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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Welcome to the

          3  Committee on Contracts. Today is November the 13th,

          4  2003, and we will be holding a hearing today

          5  concerning Intro. 271, which is called the "Equal

          6  Benefits Law." And before we ask the first witness

          7  to come forward, I would just like to acknowledge my

          8  colleagues that are present this afternoon, and some

          9  of them are across the hall over at another hearing,

         10  that's where I was. Starting from my left, Phil

         11  Reed, Council Member from Manhattan, Dr. Kendall

         12  Stewart from Brooklyn, Margarita Lopez from

         13  Manhattan, Chris Quinn to my right from Manhattan,

         14  and myself, Robert Jackson, from Manhattan.

         15                 The staff involved, obviously Rob

         16  Newman is the Counsel for the Contracts Committee,

         17  and while Rob is on paternity leave, Tracy

         18  Qualliotine is standing in his place, and Sarah

         19  Seidman and Regina Poreda is the staff of the

         20  Contracts Committee. And I cannot say how important

         21  Council Member Christine Quinn's staff has been in

         22  this process and they deserve a lot of praise

         23  because they have really, along with the Contracts

         24  Committee staff, have done all of the work that has

         25  brought us here today.
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          2                 So, today the Contracts Committee

          3  will hold a first hearing on Introductory Bill No.

          4  Intro. 271, also known as the Equal Benefits Law.

          5                 Intro. 271, if enacted, will require

          6  firms that contract with the City of New York, to

          7  offer equivalent employment benefit packages to both

          8  employees with spouses and employees with domestic

          9  partners, including individuals in both same sex and

         10  heterosexual relationships.

         11                 This bill would apply to contractors

         12  that enter into or renew purchasing, construction or

         13  service contracts with the City of New York valued

         14  at or above $100,000.

         15                 It has been estimated that employment

         16  benefits which include such vital benefits as

         17  medical insurance and retirement benefits generally

         18  comprise between 30 and 40 percent of an employee's

         19  total compensation package.

         20                 As a consequence, many employers are

         21  not recognizing that in order to truly provide equal

         22  pay for equal work, steps must be taken to equalize

         23  the value of benefits offered to their employees,

         24  regardless of the employee's marital status.

         25                 Through Intro. 271, the City as a
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          2  market participant, consumer of goods and services,

          3  is simply requiring compensational parity for the

          4  employees of its contractors, regardless of whether

          5  the employees household is organized around a

          6  marriage or a domestic partnership.

          7                 Now, before I begin, as far as the

          8  first witness, I would like to introduce to you one

          9  of several of the primary sponsors and they're

         10  listed here, and obviously Christine Quinn,

         11  Margarita Lopez, Phil Reed and many of my

         12  colleagues, in fact, there are about -- Chris, there

         13  are about 37, 38 members that have signed on as

         14  primary sponsors, and before we take the first

         15  witness I would like to introduce my colleague in

         16  the City Council and someone that is the prime

         17  sponsor of this legislation, Christine Quinn.

         18                 Chris.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         20  much, Chairperson Jackson.

         21                 I just want to start off by thanking

         22  Council Member Jackson, Chair Jackson, for being

         23  such a tremendous supporter of the Equal Benefits

         24  Bill, a tremendous supporter of all the communities

         25  impacted by this bill, and for being so focused and
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          2  helpful in moving this hearing forward today. I said

          3  at our press conference, but it deserves repeating

          4  numerous times, to those of us in the LGBT community

          5  and in the working people's community, couldn't have

          6  a better friend as the Chair of this Committee than

          7  Robert Jackson.

          8                 I, too, want to thank the staff to

          9  this Committee, particularly Rob Newman, who as was

         10  said has been on paternity leave, but you would

         11  think he was at work, the amount of times he's been

         12  helping us over the past couple of weeks, and also

         13  my staff who has done a tremendous amount of work

         14  pulling this hearing together.

         15                 I also want to thank everybody who is

         16  here for being here and being flexible on the room

         17  and other matters.

         18                 As was said, we're having the first

         19  hearing today on the Equal Benefits bill and an

         20  important piece of legislation that will, when

         21  passed into law, will require that all companies who

         22  do business with the City of New York, if they have

         23  a contract of $100,000 or more, those companies, if

         24  they provide marital benefits, will have to provide

         25  domestic partnership benefits.
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          2                 The bill says that if a company has a

          3  contract of $100,000 or more, every employee of that

          4  company who is in the City of New York will have to

          5  be offered domestic partnership benefits and all

          6  employees who are paid for by that contract outside

          7  of the five boroughs would also have to be offered

          8  domestic partnership if the company has marital

          9  benefits.

         10                 It's a very important piece of equal

         11  rights and workers' rights legislation, because it

         12  says the City of New York believes that all workers

         13  should be treated the same regardless of the make-up

         14  of their families. And it's a bill that recognizes

         15  that for LGBT people, the only way our relationships

         16  can be recognized and affirmed in this City and

         17  state is through domestic partnership.

         18                 So, it's important to note that this

         19  bill is not exclusively a gay rights bill.

         20  Seventy-one percent of the people who have

         21  registered with the City Clerk as domestic partners

         22  over the past five years are heterosexual New

         23  Yorkers, this is a bill which is important to all

         24  workers.

         25                 We, for a number of years in
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          2  municipal government have offered domestic

          3  partnership benefits to municipal workers. When this

          4  bill becomes law, we will be saying that we are

          5  consistent when we spend taxpayer dollars. We will

          6  be sending a message that taxpayer dollars only want

          7  to pay equal benefits for equal work. Now, whether

          8  we're paying in the form of a salary of a City

          9  worker, or paying in a form of a contract for

         10  services, we want all workers to have the same

         11  benefits and the same rights on the job, will follow

         12  other cities like Seattle and San Francisco and the

         13  State of California in this important move to bring

         14  more insurance coverage, more benefits and most

         15  importantly, a quality in the workplace for all

         16  workers and recognition in the workplace of the

         17  diversity of families which now exist in New York

         18  City, New York State and this country.

         19                 I look forward to the passage of this

         20  bill. I don't look forward to a veto by Mayor

         21  Bloomberg, and let me be clear, we have the support

         22  of a vast majority of the City Council, we have the

         23  support of the Comptroller of the City of New York,

         24  we have the support of the Public Advocate, the

         25  Central Labor Counsel, 32BJ, PSC, many other unions.
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          2  If this bill is vetoed after the legislative

          3  process, we will override that veto and this bill

          4  will eventually become the law of the City of New

          5  York.

          6                 Thank you, again, to Council Member

          7  Jackson, for his tremendous leadership on this

          8  issue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         10  Council member.

         11                 Council Member Margarita Lopez,

         12  another prime sponsor of the bill.

         13                 Council Member Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I believe that

         15  the economy of the City of New York depends on the

         16  health of the people who run it. To embrace the

         17  concept of health insurance for all workers and

         18  their family members, there shall be no prejudicism,

         19  in what perceive or is a traditional family or is

         20  not. And that is the main issue in front of this

         21  particular bill.

         22                 If we believe that our City should be

         23  run by people who are healthy and capable of

         24  maintaining the economy of our City that guarantee

         25  our safety in every aspect of life, then we must
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          2  provide health services for them, and the health

          3  insurance that they need is critical.

          4                 If the City of New York is going to

          5  use tax dollars payers (sic) to fund programs out

          6  there that provide services of all kind to the City

          7  of New York from construction jobs to social

          8  services of every kind, that is about taking care of

          9  babies in a day care center, it is unacceptable for

         10  me as a law-maker to believe that we shall allocate

         11  monies in the budget to provide these services, but

         12  meanwhile the workers who work for those particular

         13  places utilizing City dollars are not entitled to

         14  health insurance if they are defined as a family

         15  that is not accepted in this City or in this nation.

         16                 We need to end with that notion, we

         17  need to stop that nonsense, particularly when the

         18  City of New York has passed laws that make very

         19  clear that in this City we do not allow

         20  discrimination perceived on sexual orientation or

         21  any kind of possible discrimination that people can

         22  use.

         23                 Then this bill for me is a very

         24  simple one, it's not one that I even need to debate,

         25  and I'm looking forward to see the people who are
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          2  coming to testify against this bill to give me the

          3  explanation why they will be against providing

          4  health care for all New Yorkers.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Lopez.

          8                 Council Member Phil Reed, my

          9  colleague, another prime sponsor of the bill.

         10                 Phil.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you,

         12  Chairman Jackson. As we had said earlier, I'm

         13  looking forward to hearing testimony about how well

         14  it works in San Francisco, and I am curious as to

         15  what the criticism of the bill would be, so I'm

         16  anxious for us to move forward with your hearing.

         17                 Thank you very much, for holding

         18  this.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Council Member David Yassky of

         21  Brooklyn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         23  much, Chair Jackson.

         24                 I want to thank you and congratulate

         25  you for holding this hearing and your leadership.
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          2                 I sit also on the Education Committee

          3  which is in the middle of a hearing next door, and

          4  so I want to apologize in advance that I want to be

          5  back and forth. But I want to say at the outset, I

          6  believe this is a very important piece of

          7  legislation. I believe it is a matter of time until

          8  same sex couples have the complete equality with

          9  different sex couples in this country, and I am

         10  hopeful that New York will be a leader and in the

         11  forefront of that. But until such time comes, the

         12  same sex couples have the full right to marry as

         13  other couples, then this legislation like this is

         14  critically important to assure that we minimize the

         15  differential treatment and minimize the

         16  discrimination. So, Chair Jackson, I support it

         17  enthusiastically and I look forward to voting on it,

         18  I hope on a day that I'm sure and I hope will be

         19  soon.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Yassky.

         23                 Dr. Stewart, do you have any opening

         24  comments before we call our first witness?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dr. Kendall

          3  Stewart of Brooklyn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 It's important that we equalize the

          7  playing field, regardless of where we are, what our

          8  sexual orientation, and this bill at this time tends

          9  to bring us to that point.

         10                 I would have liked to see the bill

         11  definition for partnership go a little further,

         12  however, because I feel that even if people are

         13  living together they may not have any sex, sexual

         14  condition, and I feel that this bill can go further

         15  to deal with maybe two sisters who are living in the

         16  same house for years and the benefits can be reached

         17  out that far. I feel we can do things like that, and

         18  I would have liked the definition for domestic

         19  partners reach out to people like that, because

         20  there are quite a number of people who may not have

         21  any sexual orientation, as far as that is concerned,

         22  but because they care for one another and they might

         23  be helping one another and they live in the same

         24  home, I feel we should be looking into that aspect

         25  of people who are living in the City who are not
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          2  getting that type of benefits.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, Dr.

          5  Stewart, and with that I'm going to call our first

          6  witnesses. The Deputy Comptroller Greg Brooks and

          7  John Graham, both are New York City Deputy

          8  Comptrollers. Please come forward.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

         10  your right hands. Do you solemnly swear or affirm

         11  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         12  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         13                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: I do.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMPTROLLER GRAHAM: I do.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         16  your names and affiliations for the record.

         17                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: My name is

         18  Greg Brooks. I'm Deputy Comptroller for Policy,

         19  Audit, Contracts and Accountancy.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMPTROLLER GRAHAM: I'm

         21  John Graham. I'm the Assistant Comptroller for

         22  Contracts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Welcome this

         24  morning, and please give your testimony.

         25                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: Thank you.
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          2  It's a pleasure to be here --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you pull up

          4  your mic, if you don't mind, because I'm a little

          5  hard of hearing.

          6                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: Can you

          7  hear me now?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: A little better.

          9                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: Thank you.

         10  It's indeed a pleasure to be here this afternoon, on

         11  behalf of Comptroller William C. Thompson, Jr.

         12                 Good afternoon, Chair Jackson,

         13  Council Member Quinn, and members of the City

         14  Council. Thank you for the opportunity to present

         15  testimony on behalf of Comptroller William C.

         16  Thompson.

         17                 Comptroller Thompson supports Intro.

         18  271, the Equal Benefits bill, which would require

         19  contractors doing business with the City of New York

         20  to extend benefits to the domestic partners of their

         21  employees.

         22                 The law would cover firms with

         23  contracts valued at more than $100,000, requiring

         24  them to apply leave policies and provide all

         25  benefits, including health care coverage, pension
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          2  benefits, disability and life insurance, to all of

          3  their employees on an equal basis.

          4                 Passage of this legislation would

          5  mark an important step forward in the fight for

          6  equal rights for all people.

          7                 It would also bring the City's

          8  requirements for companies into step with the City's

          9  policy with its own employees.

         10                 Under current law, the domestic

         11  partners of New York City employees are entitled to

         12  receive the same benefits as spouses.

         13                 The companies covered under this bill

         14  are doing significant business with the City. Much

         15  like City employees, their employees provide

         16  essential services to the City of New York, and they

         17  deserve the same rights and privileges.

         18                 The City of New York has a

         19  responsibility to do business with companies that

         20  respect the basic rights of all of their employees.

         21  Businesses that cannot or do not wish to abide by

         22  New York City's standards simply should not be doing

         23  business with the City. This will send a strong

         24  message to private companies seeking to win

         25  contracts, make it your business to offer equal
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          2  benefits or you won't do business with the City of

          3  New York.

          4                 The Comptroller's Office does have

          5  some technical concerns, regarding the best way to

          6  structure the audit requirements included in the

          7  legislation.

          8                 We have already discussed them with

          9  some Committee members, and we look forward to

         10  working with the Committee as review of the

         11  legislation proceeds.

         12                 Comptroller Thompson applauds Council

         13  Member Quinn for advancing this important

         14  legislation, and of course the Chair of the

         15  Contracts Committee, Council Member Jackson, and the

         16  members of the Committee who are sponsoring the

         17  bill.

         18                 We look forward to working with you

         19  and the entire City Council to support its passage.

         20                 Thank you once again for the

         21  opportunity to present testimony today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I want to

         23  thank both of you for coming in and giving testimony

         24  on behalf of our New York City Comptroller Bill

         25  Thompson.
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          2                 I want to open up -- before I open up

          3  the floor to questions, let me acknowledge my other

          4  colleagues that are here.

          5                 Council Member Yvette Clarke of

          6  Brooklyn, and Council Member Helen Sears of Queens.

          7  And with that, my colleagues, the floor is open for

          8  questions.

          9                 Council Member Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 So, just based on your testimony, is

         12  it fair to say that Comptroller Thompson is one of

         13  the people who has the most significant role in

         14  contracting in the City, the Comptroller's Office,

         15  is it fair to say that he doesn't have any fears

         16  that this bill if passed into law would deter

         17  entities from contracting with the City or have a

         18  negative fiscal impact on the City?

         19                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: That is

         20  fair to say. I mean, particularly with the list that

         21  you're providing today, all of those companies that

         22  already provide this benefit, what we see this bill

         23  as doing is basically putting all of those vendors

         24  who do business with the City on the same footing as

         25  the ones that have already taken this progressive
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          2  step. So, I think that that's fair to say.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. And I

          4  think that's an important statement from any elected

          5  official, any City elected official, but I think

          6  that's particularly important from the Comptroller

          7  of the City of New York who has such a critical and

          8  central role to our contracting process. So, if you

          9  could thank the Comptroller for his support, and say

         10  we look forward to ironing out any of the technical

         11  issues around the frequency and other issues

         12  relating to auditing.

         13                 Thank you, both, very much.

         14                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: Thank you,

         15  Councilwoman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         17  Margarita Lopez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I know that

         19  historically the Comptroller has been a big

         20  supporter of the gay, lesbian, transgendered and

         21  bisexual community. I just want to ask the question

         22  to you, that I want clarification about his support.

         23                 The support for this bill from the

         24  Comptroller is separate and apart from his views

         25  about the support that he has toward the gay,

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  lesbian, transgender, bisexual community?

          3                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: Well, I

          4  would say it's in tandem with that support, but this

          5  bill, as many of you have noted, goes beyond the

          6  lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender community. In

          7  fact, it hits domestic partners of opposite sexes as

          8  well, and it's similar to the kinds of benefits that

          9  are now afforded to City workers, and quite frankly,

         10  I've been around the City long enough that I can

         11  remember when that bill was being discussed and so

         12  many people said, well, this is going to break the

         13  bank.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It's going to

         15  break the back of Council Member Sears.

         16                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: The bank,

         17  not the back.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But I will take

         19  care of you, my sister.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But she'd have

         21  to sue herself, because she'd have to sue the City

         22  Council.

         23                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: We could

         24  take the claim form on the way out actually. It

         25  works out very well.
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          2                 There were many naysayers at that

          3  point in time. In fact, the efficacy of that policy

          4  has been proven, and it's a benefit that I think

          5  people are entitled to, more than my thinking, the

          6  Comptroller believes people are entitled to, and,

          7  yes, it does go beyond just support for any

          8  individual community.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The reason I'm

         10  asking this question, and I don't want to give the

         11  impression that I'm trying to trick anybody, is that

         12  I want to make clear that from the part of the

         13  Comptroller, as the person who is supposed to take

         14  care of our money, and make sure that nobody mess up

         15  with it, that the Comptroller's position is based on

         16  his evaluation as a person in charge of monitoring

         17  the monies of the City, that this bill is a healthy

         18  bill for the City of New York, and it would not

         19  jeopardize this City of ours, separate and apart

         20  from the support that he can have, always have and

         21  have proved to have for the gay, lesbian,

         22  transgender community, because this bill is not

         23  about the gay, lesbian, transgender, bisexual

         24  community. This bill is about providing health care

         25  to individuals, depending on the relationship that
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          2  they are, and in this case it's about domestic

          3  partnership, but it's not about a particular

          4  community inside of that domestic partnership group

          5  of people, correct?

          6                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: That's

          7  correct, and it's fair to say as well that in

          8  supporting this bill the Comptroller never neglects

          9  his fiduciary responsibilities to the people of the

         10  City of New York, and that is a very important

         11  responsibility and key to the position of

         12  Comptroller, and taking that responsibility into

         13  account he still fully supports this bill.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: There being no

         16  other questions from my colleagues, I want to thank

         17  you for coming in and we appreciate it, and any

         18  concerns that you have, we will work that out.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BROOKS: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next I would

         22  like to call Terri Matthews. Ms. Matthews and Marla

         23  Simpson. And Ms. Simpson is the Director of the

         24  Mayor's Office of Contracts, and Ms. Matthews is the

         25  Special Counsel to the Deputy Mayor; is that
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          2  correct?

          3                 Welcome. And I haven't seen you in

          4  awhile, so welcome, and good afternoon for both of

          5  you. Thanks for coming in.

          6                 And I want to thank you for allowing

          7  the Comptroller's Office to go first. We appreciate

          8  your cooperation.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

         10  your right hands.

         11                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         12  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MS. MATTHEWS: Yes.

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: Yes.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         17  your name and affiliation for the record. Is your

         18  mic on?

         19                 MS. MATTHEWS: Terri Matthews. I'm

         20  Counsel to Deputy Mayor Shaw.

         21                 Good afternoon, Chairperson Jackson,

         22  and Council members, and thank you for the

         23  opportunity to appear before you today to discuss

         24  Intro. 271.

         25                 The City treats its own employees who
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          2  have domestic partners in the same manner as those

          3  who have spouses, to the maximum extent permitted by

          4  law.

          5                 Health insurance and leave benefits,

          6  for example, are offered on an equal basis for

          7  spouses and domestic partners.

          8                 We have also amended our laws, local

          9  laws and regulations to equalize treatment of

         10  spouses and domestic partners to the maximum extent

         11  consistent with State law.

         12                 We believe that when companies

         13  provide domestic partnership benefits, particularly

         14  health care benefits, to all their employees, it is

         15  the right thing for them to do, and will inure to

         16  the company's benefit as well.

         17                 That being said, we also believe that

         18  to create such an obligation on those vendors that

         19  contract with the City is inappropriate.

         20                 It has been our general procurement

         21  policy position that we should not burden the City's

         22  procurement process with social policies compelling

         23  our vendors to implement our social policy

         24  preferences in addition to providing goods or

         25  services at the highest quality and lowest cost.
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          2                 Various provisions of law require

          3  this position. In recent years, the Court of Appeals

          4  has repeatedly held that the General Municipal Law

          5  prohibits social policy restrictions on municipal

          6  contracting that are unrelated to the state's strong

          7  policies of protecting the public fisk.  It has

          8  consistently struck down bid specifications that

          9  advance the public policy but do not result in

         10  specific savings, quality improvements for the

         11  particular procurement in which the specification is

         12  imposed.

         13                 Among the measures thus invalidated

         14  were mandates for apprenticeship training programs,

         15  local manufacturer preferences, and certain project

         16  labor agreements.

         17                 Here Intro. 271's requirements would

         18  further a social policy that would not improve the

         19  quality of City purchases or result in a lower cost

         20  for such purchases or otherwise prevent fraud.

         21                 Thus, we believe Intro. 271 cannot be

         22  reconciled with the general municipal law.

         23                 Intro. 271 would impose a greater

         24  burden on contractors located in New York City, who

         25  would be required to offer domestic partner benefits
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          2  to all of their employees than on contractors

          3  located elsewhere who would only have to offer such

          4  benefits to employees involved in performing the

          5  contracts.

          6                 Why we believe as a matter of law

          7  that we cannot impose the social policy on our

          8  vendors, were we able to impose the obligation

          9  pursuant to Intro. 271, we believe the result would

         10  be a significant competitive advantage for

         11  out-of-city bidders, whose costs would not have to

         12  reflect the coverage from most of their workers.

         13                 Intro. 271 also curtails the Mayor's

         14  powers under the New York State local finance law

         15  and the Charter with respect to procurement and real

         16  estate transactions.

         17                 As such, it cannot be validly enacted

         18  without a referendum of voters.

         19                 There are also situations where an

         20  application of Intro. 271 to particular contracts

         21  would be preempted by ERISA.

         22                 As the Mayor stated in the recently

         23  released report on procurement reform, entitled "A

         24  Blueprint for Change," our challenge in procurement

         25  is to ensure that our tax dollars produce real
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          2  value, that is to say fair prices, high quality, and

          3  timely delivery of what we need.

          4                 Our existing process is already

          5  cumbersome, and whether we like it or not, many

          6  companies choose not to do business with us because

          7  of our existing requirements.

          8                 Indeed, any consideration of Intro.

          9  271 must include an assessment of the risk,

         10  particularly in human services, that a significant

         11  portion of our not-for-profit vendor base,

         12  particularly some of the faith-based organizations

         13  crucial to our delivery of children's services,

         14  health services and other critical needs, may be

         15  unwilling to modify their benefit policies, as this

         16  proposal would contemplate as a price to do business

         17  with us.

         18                 Faced with the potential for reduced

         19  competition, or worse, creating a competitive

         20  advantage for companies located out of the City, the

         21  reality of the City's financial straights and the

         22  significant questions of state law that prohibit

         23  imposing social policy on the procurement process,

         24  Mayor Bloomberg cannot support this proposed

         25  legislation.
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          2                 When companies choose to forego

          3  dealing with the City based on our efforts to

          4  dictate their employment policy, all New Yorkers

          5  lose. Not only because we still don't succeed in

          6  engineering the social policy change we all seek,

          7  but also because the array of offerings to the City

          8  is thereby reduced.

          9                 I want to thank you for letting us

         10  testify and we're available for questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

         12  coming in and giving the Administration's point of

         13  view on this particular matter.

         14                 I'd like to open the floor up to

         15  questions from my colleague, Council Member

         16  Margarita Lopez, and then Christine Quinn.

         17                 Council Member Lopez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It's very good

         19  to see both of you always. You are two women that I

         20  respect very much, and I always enjoy seeing the

         21  quality of people that Mayor Bloomberg has appointed

         22  to manage the City and the two of you are two of

         23  those people.

         24                 Saying that, today we're going to be

         25  against each other. And it's very saddening for me
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          2  to listen to the presentation that you have made,

          3  number one. In the presentation that you have made

          4  putting forward the position of the Mayor, you said

          5  in your presentation that the City put contracts in

          6  place taking in consideration timely delivery of

          7  what we need. Isn't that true that the health of the

          8  employees of those people that we contract with will

          9  affect the timely delivery of services if those

         10  employees of those people that we contract with will

         11  not be healthy?

         12                 MS. MATTHEWS: I'm not the Law

         13  Department, but you're getting into an area, this is

         14  the whole social policy aspect and what constitutes

         15  a permissible local addition to state law.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: We are not

         17  talking about social policy with this bill. We're

         18  talking about an economic proposal that makes sense

         19  for the health of the economy of this City, health

         20  provision of services for employees who work for a

         21  particular company. The only thing that that does is

         22  not provide social services, the only thing that

         23  that does is to maintain a healthy force in place.

         24                 MS. MATTHEWS: Okay, first, the

         25  employees are covered by the health benefits. I
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          2  thought this law was to extend it to their domestic

          3  partners. And, so, --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the issue

          5  of the Mayor is not social policy. The issue that

          6  the Mayor is presenting here is that he has a

          7  problem with domestic partnership benefit being

          8  given.

          9                 MS. MATTHEWS: We do not object to the

         10  policy of equal benefit. What we object to is using

         11  our procurement process, to enforce that at the

         12  local level. We feel that state law prohibits us

         13  from doing it. It's not that we're against the

         14  policy, but we feel that the procurement law is the

         15  wrong vehicle to enforce this, and I know that's --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the Mayor

         17  have another place where this can be enforced? Can

         18  you suggest that to us on the record right now?

         19                 MS. MATTHEWS: I don't believe we're a

         20  local government. And I'm not the Law Department,

         21  unfortunately. I'm not aware of another vehicle. But

         22  if there were another vehicle, our objection to this

         23  is taking the procurement process and adding a

         24  requirement of a social policy nature that would

         25  apply to our vendors.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And if the

          3  Mayor will have another vehicle in which this can be

          4  enforced, the Mayor would agree to that. The problem

          5  that he have right now is that in his view and his

          6  belief, the procurement process is not the way and

          7  the place to enforce this kind of policy.

          8                 MS. MATTHEWS: I don't know that

          9  another vehicle exists, and we would have to talk to

         10  the Law Department as you would, as well, you're the

         11  legislative body.

         12                 But our objection today is to this

         13  bill which attempts to use our procurement system to

         14  effect the social policy which we don't object to in

         15  a general sense.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, we

         17  disagree that this is social policy to begin with.

         18  That's our first disagreement. The next question,

         19  and the last one, I would like to go to the point

         20  that you mentioned here:

         21                 A significant portion of our

         22  non-for-profit vendor base, particularly some of the

         23  faith-based organization, crucial to our delivery of

         24  children's services, health services and other

         25  critical needs, may be unwilling to modify their
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          2  benefit policies as this proposal would contemplate

          3  as a price to do business with us.

          4                 I need clarification from the part of

          5  the Administration. This piece of a statement

          6  indicate to me that you are telling us that the

          7  faith and the belief that any particular institution

          8  has in regard of their religious views will govern

          9  the dollars that we assign to serve people when that

         10  is exactly against the law.

         11                 MS. MATTHEWS: No. I think that what

         12  we think is that certain organizations may be

         13  unwilling to change their employment practices to

         14  comply with this law, and it's not that they're not

         15  going to serve people, but they won't be our

         16  vendors.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No. You

         18  mentioned specifically the "faith-based

         19  organizations," which are the religious

         20  organizations. Therefore, in your presentation here,

         21  I assume I understand that you are telling me that

         22  those particular organizations are worrisome to you

         23  because you understand that they may have a problem

         24  with this piece of legislation. My question,

         25  therefore, is if they have a problem with providing
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          2  health care to the employees, health care, what that

          3  have to do with the faith belief and why we going to

          4  allow government money to be governed by the faith

          5  belief that they have when separation of state and

          6  religions must be kept sacred?

          7                 MS. MATTHEWS: I guess what we're

          8  suggesting is, were this to become law, let's just

          9  say, we believe that there are going to be

         10  businesses that are not faith-based that will opt

         11  out of being our vendors, and then there will be

         12  some faith-based organizations that will opt out of

         13  being our vendors. They will -- to the extent they

         14  provide health care to their employees, they provide

         15  it, this bill, you know, would extend it and it's

         16  not a requirement, it's only a requirement to do

         17  business with us, and we feel that it's got a -- it

         18  will reduce the number of vendors who will compete

         19  for our business.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But why you

         21  single out the faith organizations? It's because

         22  they have positions in the religious belief that are

         23  against the interests of this bill?

         24                 MS. MATTHEWS: Well --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Their religious
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          2  belief?

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: We haven't done a great

          4  deal of research on this, Council Member, but we've

          5  done some research. There are particular sectors

          6  that were outlined in Ms. Matthews' testimony where

          7  the proportion of our vendor base that comes from

          8  particular religious-based organizations is fairly

          9  high. In that market, they provide a significant

         10  part of the City's vendor base.

         11                 The concern is that based on past

         12  legislative issues that have come up, there have

         13  been situations where when that legislation was

         14  presented, those organizations said in words or

         15  substance they understood where the City was going

         16  with those provisos, but if they were not exempted

         17  from that provision, they would have to decline to

         18  do business with the City.

         19                 There is precedent in other context

         20  for exemptions that were derived for those

         21  organizations, and the City, in different eras,

         22  different times, made judgments about how crucial

         23  they were to our delivery of human services.

         24                 This point in the testimony was

         25  simply designed to say that we need to do a risk
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          2  assessment.

          3                 Our outreach to that vendor base

          4  leads us to believe that, at least as a preliminary

          5  matter, their position would be that they would

          6  decline the City's business if that were a mandate,

          7  and the problem that that presents for the City is

          8  that it is not clear we have alternatives. So, if we

          9  didn't have them as vendors, it's not clear who we

         10  would have, and so those issues would simply have to

         11  be weighed. That was the point of that, and it is

         12  the matter of just very preliminary research. We

         13  would encourage the Council, obviously, to speak to

         14  those human services vendors as the Council has in

         15  past instances and decide what the impact was from

         16  your standpoint. But the concern was raised because

         17  in particular human service areas, it's a large

         18  portion of our business.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, I

         20  understand that. My last comment then is the

         21  following thing:

         22                 We have laws in this City that state

         23  clearly that no organization that receives funding

         24  from the City of New York can discriminate against

         25  people for sexual orientation, color, race, gender,
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          2  or disability status. And what we're talking about

          3  here, therefore, is that we will understand that we

          4  cannot pass a bill because certain particular

          5  organizations that receive funding from the City of

          6  New York through these contracts that we have, will

          7  feel compelled to disobey such a law, and they will

          8  not be willing to apply for the funding to receive

          9  those contracts, therefore, the bigot's position

         10  will dictate the way that we will do business in

         11  this City? That's what that means.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, if you

         13  have any suggestions or any specifics that you want

         14  to share with us in writing as to any CBOs or any

         15  contractors that are doing business with the City of

         16  New York that may not want to do business with us as

         17  a result, if this intro is passed into law, we would

         18  appreciate it. And also, even if you don't want to

         19  put it in writing, if you can ask them to contact

         20  Rob Newman or Tracey, our Counsels to the Committee,

         21  so we can at least hear them out and hopefully they

         22  may come and give testimony why this intro may not

         23  be beneficial for their organization.

         24                 So, we want to hear from those that

         25  are in favor of this bill, and those that are
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          2  opposed. We want to get a full airing out, and as

          3  you know, Ms. Matthews, and Ms. Simpson, we're not

          4  going to vote on the bill today, so there will be

          5  another hearing so people will have the opportunity

          6  to come forward.

          7                 Council Member Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 You seem to state four or five areas

         10  of opposition - the out-of-city issue, social

         11  policy, the general municipal law, ERISA, and the

         12  concern about faith-based organizations.

         13                 Let me just start and clear up your

         14  first concern. The issue of only covering employees

         15  who are paid for by the contract outside of the City

         16  of New York, the fact that if your employees are

         17  part of this -- the fact that in the City you have

         18  to cover all your employees, but if you're outside

         19  of the five boroughs, you only have to cover the

         20  ones who are actually paid for by the contract, we

         21  thought an uncharacteristic move on my part, that

         22  that was a more conservative and perhaps better way

         23  to go. See, I have learned my lesson on that

         24  mistake.

         25                 Based on consultation with the
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          2  Counsel, and exploration of this point in

          3  preparation for the hearing with the folks in San

          4  Francisco, we are more than happy, and it is,

          5  probably you're absolutely right, I'll agree with

          6  the Mayor on that, more appropriate that we expand

          7  the provision of that law and make it the same in

          8  the City or out of the City, that is in fact what

          9  San Francisco did, as you well know, I'm sure, San

         10  Francisco's law went through massive litigation and

         11  that provision of their law held up as well.

         12                 So, we are more than willing to make

         13  sure we don't create, because we would never want

         14  to, an unfair playing ground that somehow made it

         15  easier for companies outside of the five boroughs,

         16  to get a contract. So, one down, three to go, we're

         17  moving toward support here, I can feel it.

         18                 And let me just say one other thing

         19  as it relates to the overall bill. You know, your

         20  concerns that people might choose not to do business

         21  with the City of New York because of this bill, and

         22  we are more than happy to sit down and go over this

         23  with you, if you look at the experience in San

         24  Francisco and Seattle and other places, people raise

         25  that concern. I understand why someone might have
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          2  that concern, the facts don't bear that concern out.

          3                 The faith-based organizations, and

          4  all other organizations, as you look at San

          5  Francisco and other places, did not walk away from

          6  the municipal business of those cities, and it did

          7  not, we did not see a significant increase, if any

          8  increase, in the contracting cost for those cities,

          9  and we're happy to take you through those facts as

         10  we move forward in this process.

         11                 On the issue of the general municipal

         12  law, I'm a little confused by the argument you

         13  raise, because you argue that the equal benefits

         14  bill would violate the State General Municipal Law,

         15  but I'm sure you're aware that Article 9 of the

         16  State Constitution and Section 10 of the Municipal

         17  Home Rule Law, provide really what's a clear

         18  exception to the General Municipal Law, and it

         19  clearly allows and states really clearly that cities

         20  have the right to set their labor and benefit

         21  standards for their contractors.

         22                 So, are you aware of these

         23  provisions?

         24                 MS. MATTHEWS: We're aware of these

         25  provisions, and, you know, we've consulted with
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          2  Corporation Counsel, and this is our take on the

          3  law.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But can I just

          5  ask you, why would this --

          6                 MS. MATTHEWS: I know I look like a

          7  lawyer, because I technically am, but --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You don't. It's

          9  a pretty blue sweater. You don't look like a lawyer,

         10  you like kind of jazzy. It's all working. I wouldn't

         11  have thought that.

         12                 MS. MATTHEWS: I'm not in a position

         13  to have a legal discussion.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay, with all

         15  due respect, Ms. Matthews, it's inappropriate of the

         16  Mayor to send people to testify who raise legal

         17  objections, who then say they're not willing to have

         18  a legal conversation.

         19                 You're going to raise legal objection

         20  to a piece of legislation, I understand and respect

         21  that, then come prepared to back up your argument.

         22  The Administration is either disrespectful to this

         23  process, which I can't imagine is the case, or is

         24  not fully grounded or committed in your argument if

         25  you're not able to argue them. You're the ones who
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          2  raised them.

          3                 So, let me go back. Is there

          4  something about the provisions of the State

          5  Constitution and Section 10 of the Municipal Home

          6  Rule Law that you view as different as it relates to

          7  the Equal Benefits Bill than you did as it relates

          8  to the Living Wage Bill? Because they are very

          9  similar in that their legality comes from that

         10  exception to the General Municipal Law.

         11                 So, why, and I'll try to wrap it all

         12  into one huge, massive question, why are those

         13  provisions legal to Mayor Bloomberg as it relates to

         14  the Living Wage Bill? And why is it okay to

         15  quote/unquote move social policy through the Living

         16  Wage Bill which the Mayor signed, but it is not okay

         17  to take a position in the Equal Benefits Bill, and

         18  why is that exception not good when in some ways

         19  they are mirror efforts as it relates to the

         20  requirements we set for contracts?

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't mean to be

         22  disrespectful, and we're totally not intending to be

         23  disrespectful, but as you know, we're engaged in

         24  litigation on two similar bills, predatory lending

         25  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But not the

          3  Living Wage Bill. The Mayor signed that bill.

          4  Although, he raised his objection to that bill, at

          5  the speech in front of the Empire State Pride

          6  Agenda, when the Mayor said he was opposing the

          7  Equal Benefits Bill, although he supported it as

          8  candidate Bloomberg, when he came in front of the

          9  Empire State Pride Agenda as Mayor Bloomberg, he

         10  said he was no longer for the bill. He drew a

         11  comparison at that hearing, at that event, to the

         12  Living Wage Bill. He said he couldn't support

         13  either. But he did support the Living Wage Bill, he

         14  signed it. So, what is different now between these

         15  two pieces of legislation?

         16                 MS. MATTHEWS: Okay, this is what I

         17  would like to --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay, I'll be

         19  quiet.

         20                 MS. MATTHEWS: Bearing in mind we're

         21  actively litigating the whole area of predatory

         22  lending -- and what's the other one? Sweatshops --

         23  I'm just not permitted to engage in any kind of --

         24  I'll just get everybody in trouble. I cannot talk

         25  about the law.
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          2                 But the Living Wage as a procurement

          3  policy, as opposed to a legal policy, what we had

          4  with the Living Wage was a law that was very

          5  narrowly defined on the books, and when it came up

          6  for a second part, it was a very narrowly targeted

          7  enhancement, and as a matter of procurement policy,

          8  we felt that it was not opening the door too much,

          9  it was targeted, it was already on the books, most

         10  of it was already there. It was just a small

         11  expansion, and don't ask me to explain what it is.

         12                 As a matter of procurement policy,

         13  and that's what I'm talking to, not legal policy, as

         14  a matter of procurement policy, we felt that that,

         15  yes, they're all very similar, but we felt that it

         16  wasn't opening the door to a new area, it was just

         17  expanding it slightly, so we feel that -- and, you

         18  know, when you come into the Executive Branch and

         19  have to do the job of the agencies, well you know

         20  how it is, you learned procurement, you come on the

         21  Contracts Committee, and then you learn just how

         22  complicated and awful it is, you come in and you

         23  don't realize what glomming, and I don't mean any

         24  disrespect, what adding layers of requirements for

         25  vendors, apart from just the basics of price and
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          2  quality, how it adds layers to a process that's

          3  already very burdensome. And, so, you can imagine,

          4  you come in and you learn procurement and all of a

          5  sudden you realize that what seemed to be not an

          6  issue, you know, without knowing, you come in and

          7  you say, no, we can't do this to this process.

          8                 So, as a procurement issue, I feel

          9  that it is distinguishable from this, and as a legal

         10  issue, you know, the Living Wage has not been

         11  litigated, and I don't know that we want to have a

         12  discussion about it here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just a couple

         14  of things. The Living Wage Bill hasn't been

         15  litigated partially because Mayor Bloomberg signed

         16  it. That's exactly my point, (a). (B) putting for

         17  one second aside the issues of procurement policy,

         18  in your testimony you also speak to the illegality

         19  of this bill. The provision, the exemption in the

         20  State law does not speak to the narrow nature -- it

         21  doesn't say cities have the right to set standards

         22  around benefits and labor practices, if they do them

         23  narrowly in a way that only impacts some employees -

         24  it simply does not say that. So it either is or it

         25  isn't.
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          2                 But even if you want to look at this

          3  issue of narrowness, I would argue that the Equal

          4  Benefits Bill, since it only relates to domestic

          5  partners of employees with contracts, it's more

          6  narrow than the Living Wage Bill, which set a

          7  standard for all workers, not merely those workers

          8  who have domestic partners.

          9                 So, I think this actually could be

         10  argued as to be even more narrow than the Living

         11  Wage Bill was.

         12                 And from the perspective of

         13  procurement policy, I think we would all agree, I

         14  used to run a non-profit, we need to speed up the

         15  procurement process.

         16                 I don't think any of us believe that

         17  not adding equal benefits provisions, and therefore

         18  perpetuating that some workers get treated

         19  differently than other workers, is the best way to

         20  speed up the process.

         21                 There's a lot of ideas out there,

         22  many that Chairperson Jackson is aggressively

         23  hearing and moving forward, that would speed up the

         24  process. That's the way to speed up the process, not

         25  to have a two-tiered system of what type of benefits
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          2  workers get for the jobs that they do.

          3                 Lastly, on ERISA, I just want to say

          4  for the record, you raised the concerns that the

          5  issue of ERISA prevents us from being able to do

          6  this law. But I think if you look at the Court's

          7  decisions as it relates to San Francisco, which was

          8  litigated by, you know, a court just one level below

          9  the Supreme Court of the United States, it clearly

         10  affirms that when an entity or a City is working as

         11  a market factor and not as a regulator, that they

         12  have the power to do this, that when you step over

         13  from working as a market participant and become a

         14  regulator, then there are issues raised around

         15  ERISA.

         16                 But San Francisco was clearly deemed

         17  to be a market participant, not a regulator, and I

         18  don't see anything in the ruling from San Francisco

         19  that would make it so the City of New York would be

         20  seen any differently than the City of San Francisco,

         21  clearly as a market participant, which is clearly

         22  allowed under ERISA, not as a regulator.

         23                 And it is in no way our intent to

         24  regulate this market. That would be inappropriate,

         25  that would be a violation of ERISA. We are doing
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          2  this as the City of New York, a market participant.

          3                 How does that seem differently than

          4  the market participant status that the Court clearly

          5  gave to San Francisco?

          6                 MS. MATTHEWS: The Law Department will

          7  yell at me, but my --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Don't want

          9  that.

         10                 MS. MATTHEWS: My understanding of it

         11  is, and, you know, we can consult with the Law

         12  Department, but it's a fact-based inquiry, and it's

         13  a combination of how much money we're spending and

         14  sector by sector. So, San Francisco is a much

         15  smaller --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But we were

         17  just raising it as an issue.

         18                 MS. MATTHEWS: In certain instances it

         19  may be an ERISA problem. We were not saying it is

         20  definitely an ERISA problem. What you're saying, it

         21  could turn on any variety of facts.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: All right. So,

         23  we had four, we got one out of the way. I'm hearing

         24  on ERISA that there's possibility, so I'd say we

         25  have one and a half out of the way.

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Just finally, I just want to say, and

          3  I'm glad to hear that you recognize that the ERISA

          4  concern may not be prohibitive to this, and that we

          5  are more likely to be seen the same as San

          6  Francisco, because I don't see your reason why it

          7  might not be.

          8                 I would say that we would welcome the

          9  opportunity to speak with the Law Department, and

         10  would request that at the next hearing the Law

         11  Department come so that we could have a clear and

         12  full discussion of all of the legal objections.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You, it's a

         14  loss of time for this body, and for you and for the

         15  public, to have you sitting in there and not be able

         16  to discuss the items that we need to discuss,

         17  therefore, very respectfully we ask that in the next

         18  meeting that we have in the Committee, and I'm

         19  speaking in the name of Chairman Jackson, as a

         20  member of this Committee and for the other members

         21  of this Committee, that the next time that this bill

         22  be in place and we need testimony, it need to come

         23  from the Law Department, because it appear to be

         24  that they are the ones who can answer our questions

         25  and have clarifications of the points. It's not
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          2  useful for us to be sitting with you here and not

          3  being able to have it today, because you're

          4  constantly referring back to the Law Department.

          5  Then perhaps the Law Department need to be here.

          6                 Council Member Stewart.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 I have one or two little concerns.

         10                 First of all, the bill in itself is

         11  really addressing the question of benefits to

         12  domestic partners, and if benefits have been given

         13  to other folks, regular folks, maybe someone who is

         14  married and benefits are given, granted to the

         15  spouse, we are saying that we want it to be given to

         16  domestic partners. That's it. And when they do give

         17  the benefits to a couple, we are saying that that

         18  same right should be given to domestic partners.

         19                 So, in essence, what we are trying to

         20  do is to correct the form of discrimination that

         21  goes on, and I can't see why there would be an

         22  objection to that.

         23                 MS. MATTHEWS: It's just that by doing

         24  it through the procurement law, we feel it's not

         25  permitted by law, and it's not good procurement
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          2  policy.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but if

          4  you're giving benefit to a couple, and we're saying

          5  that -- to me here it's not really a social thing, I

          6  think it has to do with rights. A form of

          7  discrimination. If I'm giving you the right because

          8  you are married, I am saying that why is it that the

          9  domestic partner is not entitled to it? Are you

         10  saying because in our society because they may not

         11  be married?

         12                 MS. MATTHEWS: It's not that we object

         13  to the theory and disagree with you that that is not

         14  appropriate to apply to equal benefits equally; it's

         15  just that it would only apply to those vendors that

         16  contract with us. It wouldn't apply to -- because

         17  you're using the procurement law as the vehicle, and

         18  it may be that that's the only place, that we would

         19  say it's not open to local legislation, but in the

         20  whole sort of panoply of things you can do local

         21  legislation, it's the only sort of hook. We're

         22  saying that that's not appropriate, and we also

         23  believe that that's not legal, to just enforce it on

         24  our vendors, because it would only apply to people

         25  who contract with us. So, that doesn't correct the
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          2  problem that you're seeking to correct, and it may

          3  be that it needs to be done at the state level in a

          4  regulatory or a state law.

          5                 I think when you try -- what we say,

          6  you're effecting social policy in procurement, and

          7  we object to it because municipal, general municipal

          8  law prohibits it, and we say it's bad procurement

          9  policy.

         10                 I think it's another way of saying

         11  it's the wrong level of government. What you want to

         12  do if you're talking about rights is a higher level

         13  of government imposing this requirement on all

         14  businesses that work in New York State.

         15                 You're not able to effect the change.

         16  It's only by -- to be covered by this law you would

         17  have to want to be a New York City vendor, and you

         18  would have to win. Just because you apply to be a

         19  New York City vendor doesn't mean you get the work.

         20  So it's not applied to every business in New York

         21  City.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, you

         23  have to understand that there are many laws that we

         24  have passed that not really apply to everybody, but

         25  the fact is we have to make laws that is within our
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          2  provision to correct the situation, and you're

          3  looking at this from a point of view whereby we're

          4  saying, even if the State or the federal government

          5  is discriminating, we are saying we have to start

          6  some place, and there is where we're starting, we're

          7  starting now. When they see we are making the

          8  corrections, I think they will follow through. But

          9  by not doing anything, to me it means then, and to

         10  say we're just trying to change social, I think

         11  we're not going the right way. I think we should

         12  make a start, we should do something to correct this

         13  subtle discrimination, and there is where my point

         14  is.

         15                 MS. MATTHEWS: And I guess we

         16  disagree. We don't disagree on the objective, we

         17  disagree on the method, and --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Just a moment.

         19  If you agree on the objective, you disagree in the

         20  method, then what is the commitment of the Mayor to

         21  locate the method?

         22                 MS. MATTHEWS: I'm not aware that -- I

         23  mean, we can go back and talk to the Law Department.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I would be

         25  interested to know.
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          2                 MS. MATTHEWS: What I'm getting at is

          3  I believe that there are very few -- there are no

          4  vehicles to do this kind of thing --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How could you

          6  say that if you, yourself, said few minutes ago,

          7  that you don't know if there's any other way in

          8  which this can be accomplished. Therefore, the only

          9  way that you can answer this is going back to the

         10  Mayor's Office and ask them to do the research

         11  necessary in order to locate the place where the

         12  final objective can be accomplished, if it's true

         13  that the Mayor is in favor of the final objective.

         14                 MS. MATTHEWS: And if there is no

         15  place for local legislation, that may be the answer,

         16  that this is just not a subject that's appropriate

         17  for New York State for local legislation, in view of

         18  the fact that we have general municipal law 103, we

         19  have a set of case law interpreting it the way it

         20  does, it may be that there isn't any other option.

         21  So, I mean, you know, by making the distinction that

         22  we don't disagree with salutory -- the nature of

         23  what you're trying to achieve, and by saying that we

         24  disagree with the vehicle, doesn't mean that there

         25  is a vehicle that's appropriate we believe for local
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          2  legislation.

          3                 I didn't want to hold out that there

          4  was promise of some other thing.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council

          6  Member Sears.

          7                 Oh, Council member, I apologize.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just get

          9  the feeling that we're disagreeing for just the sake

         10  of disagreeing, without having real facts of how we

         11  should disagree.

         12                 Because there are many other things

         13  that we have here, laws right here in New York,

         14  local laws, that doesn't go for the entire state or

         15  even for the entire country, and, you know, to say

         16  that you disagree because of the vehicle, we have to

         17  make, try to make right what is wrong, and if this

         18  is the only way we can do it, by starting at this

         19  level, I think we should start there, and I feel

         20  that we should take it back to the Administration

         21  and let them look at it again.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council

         23  Member Sears.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 I really have to start off with

          3  recognizing, and I thank you for being here, and I

          4  thank you all for holding a hearing, but I think I

          5  have to redirect one of my questions, because I

          6  don't want to really harp on things that you can't

          7  answer. I don't think that would be very fair.

          8                 Secondly, however, what I do have to

          9  say, and I think you need to carry back to the

         10  Administration, is that, one, that everybody around

         11  this table is very cognizant of fiscal constraints.

         12  We are also very much aware of the procurement

         13  process and how it starts and how it ends, and what

         14  happens in the middle. Where I think the difference

         15  is, regardless of what municipal law is out there,

         16  or state law, is that what is the role of

         17  government, what is social policy and how does that

         18  attach itself to the fundamental basic laws of the

         19  society?

         20                 We see around the world where social

         21  justice is separate and apart and we see man's

         22  inhumanity to man. I think the Administration is

         23  making a big mistake if they think that the Council

         24  members who are here now are going to ignore the

         25  fight for social justice. It's a very big part of
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          2  government function. I firmly believe that. And when

          3  you state that there are organizations of faith that

          4  may not do this, and no longer wish to procure, we

          5  know that everybody who bids doesn't get the award.

          6  It's going to be one. That one, for them to abide by

          7  what is an existing law in the City of New York now,

          8  which is the recognition of domestic partnership,

          9  and the benefits that go with it, when we don't ask

         10  them to comply with our law, we are saying, you can

         11  do what you want, any time, anywhere, any place, and

         12  you know what? That would be wrong for us to do that

         13  because we are working at keeping civil order and

         14  we're working at what is fair.

         15                 What are some of the services that

         16  these organizations of faith provide that they may

         17  no longer do a bidding process? Do any one of you

         18  know what those may be?

         19                 MS. MATTHEWS: I thought we were going

         20  --

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Day care

         22  services, medical services.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: Foster care is actually

         24  more accurate more so than day care.

         25                 I don't believe, and, again, I can't
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          2  speak for the vendors, I would encourage the

          3  dialogue directly between the vendors and the

          4  Council, they're not saying that they wouldn't abide

          5  by City law, they do abide by City law, including

          6  anti-discrimination laws, they do abide by the law.

          7  What they are saying is, at least at this

          8  preliminary basis, they would not be willing to

          9  modify their benefits policies for the coverage of

         10  families in this way and they would decline to do

         11  business under that circumstance.

         12                 The additional reason for the City's

         13  concern is that it is not clear, while in many cases

         14  we have competition, and you're right, one vendor

         15  wins and there's a bunch of other vendors who are

         16  out there, there are sectors throughout the City's

         17  procurement universe, where the competition is very

         18  limited, and where it is not clear that if

         19  organizations pulled out, we would have a

         20  replacement at all.

         21                 That's the only issue that that

         22  comment was designed to address.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I think

         24  certainly if that was the case, and I have worked in

         25  social services and I've worked in health care, and
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          2  I believe very strongly that we would never get down

          3  to a zero end.

          4                 I have found in health care, and I

          5  have found with any kind of negotiations, that when

          6  one sticks very firmly to their position, without in

          7  a dictatorship, there is a lot of negotiation goes

          8  on and there are a lot of compromises that are made.

          9                 I also have to say something else,

         10  since I'm on the Health Committee. When those

         11  companies do not recognize this, what they are

         12  doing, earning the dollars from New York City,

         13  taxpayers' dollars, they are putting an additional,

         14  and I'll use the word burden, as a responsibility,

         15  and pass it on in many cases to the Health and

         16  Hospital Corporation. And they just add, they add

         17  and they add to a responsibility that is growing

         18  huge in the City of New York, and it behooves me why

         19  anyone who does business with the City of New York,

         20  earning over 100,000 or more, which in social

         21  services is substantial, that would not meet their

         22  obligation.

         23                 I find that ludicrous, because

         24  ultimately it ends up becoming the responsibility of

         25  the City, and how does anybody justify that? How?
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can either

          3  of the two of you clarify for the benefit of all of

          4  us here, what was the definition that they cannot

          5  change in regard of family, and what is the reason

          6  of why that definition cannot be changed by those

          7  organizations?

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know, but we

          9  could get back to you.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Did they

         11  express this to the Administration?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: We did some very

         13  preliminary research principally with organizations

         14  affiliated with the Archdiocese, and it was --

         15  again, they had not been contacted by the Council.

         16  They said they would look at the bill. They were not

         17  aware of the bill at the time, but they expressed

         18  the concern regarding whether their benefits

         19  policies could comply with this bill and whether

         20  they would be able to continue to serve as a City

         21  vendor.

         22                 I don't want to speak to them. I

         23  don't know what their final position is, it was

         24  simply a concern raised on a preliminary research

         25  basis.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can you

          3  clarify where, which Archdiocese you're talking

          4  about, because there are many? To what specifically

          5  are you referring to?

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: The Archdiocese of the

          7  City of New York. The Roman Catholic Archdiocese of

          8  the City of New York.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's the

         10  particular institution you consulted with?

         11                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, technically, as

         12  you know, Council member, there are a large number

         13  of charities that are affiliated with the

         14  Archdiocese, they operate under a charitable

         15  umbrella.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Also the

         17  Welfare Protestant Agencies?

         18                 MS. SIMPSON: At this point, again, we

         19  said certain faith-based organizations. We didn't do

         20  a comprehensive survey. We would encourage you to

         21  obviously pursue this with other organizations that

         22  have taken this position in the past.

         23                 But the organizations that we

         24  consulted with were vendors to the City now --

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's
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          2  fascinating for me, and I guess with all of the

          3  members of this body, to hear you say to us that

          4  they have not read the bill, but they oppose the

          5  bill. It's just marvelous.

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't want to speak

          7  for them. I don't think they took an official

          8  position opposing the bill. The question that was

          9  asked --

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But then

         11  you are representing in here that you are extremely

         12  concerned and preoccupied about the position and

         13  that they may leave us without being willing to take

         14  the contracts that we have. Then what is it?

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: We simply asked for a

         16  risk assessment, which is a dialogue. We did not

         17  presume to state what their position is for them. We

         18  simply raised a risk assessment because this has

         19  come up in past legislation and there have been laws

         20  passed by the Council that created ways for this

         21  situation to be resolved, and this was a risk that

         22  was raised as a question that would require

         23  additional dialogue principally with the vendors.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 Council Member Quinn, and Council

          3  Member Stewart after.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just two quick

          5  points. One, for the record, the Episcopal

          6  Archdiocese does offer domestic partnership,

          7  Episcopal social services, who were one of the top

          8  100 contractors in this City, do offer domestic

          9  partnership, so this is not an across-the-board

         10  faith-based related organization position.

         11                 I just want to say, I mean I think

         12  Council Member Lopez raises a good point in that you

         13  were saying you think there's these concerns, and

         14  then seeming to base some of your opposition on it,

         15  I know you've clarified and said you're not actually

         16  saying those are the reasons you're opposed, but you

         17  just want a dialogue, but I think if you look at

         18  your testimony, at the end of page three, is where

         19  the testimony states, you know, some of the

         20  faith-based organizations crucial to our delivery of

         21  crucial children's services, et cetera, et cetera,

         22  may be unwilling to modify their benefits policies

         23  as this proposal would contemplate as a price to do

         24  business with us, period.

         25                 Next paragraph. First sentence: Faced
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          2  with the potential for a reduced competition, or

          3  worse, creating a competitive advantage for

          4  companies outside the City, the reality of the

          5  financial straights, and the significant questions

          6  to state law that propose it, you know, bla-bla-bla,

          7  Mayor Bloomberg cannot support this proposed

          8  legislation.

          9                 So, your affirmation very clearly of

         10  the Mayor's opposition is a sentence immediately

         11  after the sentence about faith-based organizations.

         12  So, I appreciate the clarification that that is in

         13  no way, shape or form why you're opposed to it, but

         14  that is certainly not what your testimony indicated.

         15  Your testimony, one, clearly follows the other.

         16                 MS. MATTHEWS: It's just that, forgive

         17  me, we start out at the middle of page three talking

         18  about the fact that many companies right now, as a

         19  result of our existing process, choose not to do

         20  business with us.

         21                 We're trying to streamline the

         22  process to increase competition. And, so, we started

         23  out with the general proposition that we're losing

         24  robust competition because we're a difficult entity

         25  to do business with, and then we specifically focus,
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          2  because we thought it was important to highlight,

          3  apart from the general issue of -- we'd like to have

          4  more robust competition, and we think putting social

          5  policy in our procurement process is an added thing

          6  for people to do business with us, we think it's

          7  going to have an impact on the competition for

          8  general services, but then looking more specifically

          9  at human services contracts, with the concentration

         10  of faith-based groups.

         11                 Basically we started with a general

         12  proposition, narrowed it and then came back out. And

         13  it's just because we thought it was important to

         14  mention, and that that was all we were trying to do.

         15  But it wasn't that this is the single issue, we

         16  thought it just deserved special attention. We

         17  thought you would just think about.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council

         19  Member Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just want

         21  to go back to, you said basically that some of these

         22  religious organizations might not be able to change,

         23  so what you're saying in essence is that someone

         24  could work for this organization who may be have

         25  domestic partners, and they're unwilling to give
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          2  them the same benefits, just because of religious

          3  views; is that what you're saying?

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: I really can't go

          5  further than to repeat the discussion that I had

          6  before. The CEO of the organization, umbrella

          7  organization that I spoke of indicated based on my

          8  synopsis of the bill which I believe was a correct

          9  statement of the bill's provisions, that that might

         10  not be a provision they would be able to implement

         11  for their employees.

         12                 Why that is, we didn't speak to; what

         13  the alternatives are we didn't speak to. I asked the

         14  individual if they had been contacted about the bill

         15  by the Council, they said, no, they had not received

         16  the information about the bill. I told them that the

         17  hearing was today and indicated in virtually exactly

         18  the words that are in the testimony, that we would

         19  simply raise a question about whether it had an

         20  impact on them. That's all. That was the entire

         21  conversation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The points

         23  here, I just feel that they know they will be

         24  breaking the law if they discriminate against

         25  someone for employment reasons, and now for benefit
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          2  they trying to go further, so if they are not

          3  breaking the law, in terms of preventing people just

          4  because of religious belief, from getting employment

          5  with them, and even after they got their employment,

          6  you're saying that they're not going to be getting

          7  the benefit, they're not willing to change their

          8  policy to make sure that that person gets the same

          9  benefits that someone who has a spouse?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: The testimony says they

         11  may not. That's all it says, they may not. I think

         12  it would have to be pursued further.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you,

         14  to both of you. Before I continue this hearing I

         15  want to acknowledge the presence of who had joined

         16  us. Council Member Melinda Katz, Council Member Liu,

         17  and the public person here is Assemblywoman Deborah

         18  Glick and Senator Tom Duane, that are sitting around

         19  there.

         20                 Saying that, we would like to make

         21  sure that in the next hearing that we have, that you

         22  bring the Law Department, because appears to be that

         23  is the Law Department, the one that can answer our

         24  questions, and it will be very useful for us to have

         25  further clarification into the series of questions
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          2  that we ask here, that we definitely disagree with

          3  the Administration on the finding, the provision of

          4  health care to individuals as a social policy; that

          5  is an economic policy, to provide health care to

          6  people. It's not a social policy. And in your own

          7  testimony you said it has consistently struck down

          8  bid specifications that advance public policy but do

          9  not result in a specific savings or quality

         10  improvement for the particular procurement in which

         11  the specification is imposed.

         12                 Health care for the workers who

         13  provide the services improve the quality of the

         14  services that they give and improve the savings of

         15  the City, and the issue in question why? Because

         16  when workers don't get sick, they are insured, they

         17  don't end in our public hospitals, that's one. And

         18  two, we continue to have a workforce that is

         19  healthy. That we have a fundamental problem in

         20  there, and it would be good for the Law Department

         21  to come and clarify this for us.

         22                 Thank you for your intervention

         23  today, and the Chairman is back and I can relinquish

         24  my responsibility now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 MS. MATTHEWS: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We appreciate

          5  it. Thank you for coming.

          6                 If you have any additional comments?

          7  That's it. Thank you, Ms. Matthews.

          8                 MS. MATTHEWS: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, Ms.

         10  Simpson. We appreciate you coming in.

         11                 The next witness we're calling is

         12  Brian McLaughlin, the State Assembly Member and

         13  President of the New York City Central Labor

         14  Council, AFL-CIO. And Cynthia Goldstein, San

         15  Francisco Human Rights Commission.

         16                 Ms. Goldstein, welcome. And Brian

         17  McLaughlin.

         18                 Please, ladies and gents, come

         19  forward. Take any open seats. Make yourself at home.

         20  I'm sorry that we're cramped up like this. Please

         21  come forward, take any seat, all right? Make

         22  yourself as comfortable as possible.

         23                 Ms. Goldstein, welcome to New York

         24  City.

         25                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We're glad to

          3  have you here.

          4                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: It's my pleasure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, we're

          6  going to wait for our State Assembly Member and the

          7  President of the Central Labor Council, and then

          8  we'll begin the testimony, okay? Thank you very

          9  much. Can we get you some water or anything? Are you

         10  okay?

         11                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: I arrived yesterday

         12  afternoon.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I hope it

         14  was a pleasant trip. You know, it's kind of windy

         15  out here today, it's about 50, 60 miles an hour they

         16  tell me. I haven't been out all day, so I don't

         17  really know, but I hope your trip here to New York

         18  was a pleasant one.

         19                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Welcome. Would

         21  you please both raise your right hand.

         22                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         23  whole truth and nothing but the truth in the

         24  testimony you're about to give today?

         25                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Yes, I do.
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          2                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: I do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you please

          4  state your name and affiliation for the record,

          5  starting with you, Mr. McLaughlin.

          6                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: My name is Brian

          7  McLaughlin. I'm the President of the New York City

          8  Central Labor Council, AFL-CIO.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         10                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: My name is Cynthia

         11  Goldstein. I am an employee with the City and County

         12  of San Francisco Human Rights Commission.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. McLaughlin,

         14  would you please begin.

         15                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: First, thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman, and distinguished members of the

         17  Committee. I hope that if I held up this proceeding

         18  in any way, I apologize. I was next door for a

         19  couple of hours that the testimony, the Chairwoman

         20  of Education was conducting.

         21                 First, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to

         22  thank you for conducting this important hearing

         23  today. I'd also like to thank Council Member

         24  Christine Quinn, friend, and a sponsor of Intro.

         25  271, and the members of the Contracts Committee for
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          2  calling this hearing today and for providing me with

          3  the opportunity to submit testimony regarding an

          4  issue whose time has truly come.

          5                 I indicated before, I serve as the

          6  President of the New York City Central Labor

          7  Council. It's a chartered body of the AFL-CIO,

          8  representing a coalition of nearly 400 labor unions,

          9  with a membership of more than 1.5 million workers.

         10                 Our Council serves workers from every

         11  trade, occupation and sector of the New York

         12  economy.

         13                 The Labor movement has always been

         14  the voice of all workers, without regard to race,

         15  creed, country of origin or sexual orientation.

         16                 The City's trade unions pride

         17  themselves on being defenders of social justice and

         18  fairness. We have battled discrimination and

         19  prejudice many times in the Civil Rights era to the

         20  fight for immigrant rights held recently out in

         21  Flushing Meadow Park where 125,000 immigrants joined

         22  us in their struggle. And now we're being called on

         23  once again in the struggle to secure benefit rights

         24  for domestic partners.

         25                 The Trade Union movement has long
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          2  recognized a need for change, and many of our

          3  affiliates have led the way toward equal benefits

          4  rights through collective bargaining.

          5                 Some of our largest local unions have

          6  bargained domestic partnership benefits in their

          7  contract, such as the hotel, employee and restaurant

          8  union, Local 6 and Local 100, the Transport Workers

          9  Union, TWU Local 100, and the American Federation of

         10  State, County and Municipal Workers, AFSCME,

         11  District Council 37, as well as the Service

         12  Employees International Union, 1199 of the

         13  Healthcare Workers Union, and UNITE. They're joined

         14  by the Communication Workers and the United

         15  Federation of Teachers and other municipal unions,

         16  including some in the uniformed services.

         17                 It's also important to note that

         18  other municipalities, such as San Francisco and

         19  Seattle, and I spoke to my colleagues during the

         20  week, are moving towards similar provisions advanced

         21  through Intro. 271.

         22                 New York City, undoubtedly the most

         23  diverse City in the world, home to people from all

         24  walks of life, should trail no one when it comes to

         25  acknowledging equality and demonstrating respect for
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          2  all people.

          3                 Equality cannot simply be a buzz word

          4  thrown around in speeches, it must be proven in

          5  action.

          6                 Changing the way in which the City of

          7  New York does business is a critical step towards

          8  ensuring justice for all workers. We, as a City,

          9  should not be in business with companies that show

         10  disregard for their workers.

         11                 The New York City Central Labor

         12  Council stands in solidarity with workers and their

         13  partners, who until now have been excluded from

         14  their rights to partnership benefits and offers its

         15  full support to this legislation which would go a

         16  long way toward correcting this inequity.

         17                 At our regularly scheduled Executive

         18  Board meeting, Mr. Chairman, and Committee members,

         19  which will be held by Constitution on Thursday,

         20  November 20th, it is the recommendation of the Chair

         21  and hopefully the desire of our executive council

         22  that we will put together a committee of those who

         23  have experience in this issue and have shown vision

         24  and leadership in this area, and some others, so

         25  that we can partner with other organizations in the
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          2  City of New York, be an effective voice for this

          3  important issue, with the hope that Intro. 271, the

          4  vision of it, the respect that it gives so many in

          5  our workplace today can become a reality during this

          6  session of the Legislature.

          7                 So, again, in closing, Mr. Chairman,

          8  I want to again thank you for your leadership. I

          9  want to thank Councilwoman Quinn in particular, and

         10  the other members of the Committee for your

         11  leadership and the opportunity to lend my voice and

         12  the voice of our affiliated unions of the AFL-CIO in

         13  this City for this important measure before us

         14  today.

         15                 Thank you very much again.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         17  you for coming in and representing all of the over

         18  400 member unions of the New York City AFL Central

         19  Labor Council.

         20                 Council Member Quinn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just also

         22  want to thank you, Assembly Member McLaughlin, for

         23  taking the time to be with us today. You know, I

         24  think one of the things that came up earlier in the

         25  hearing is that, yes, this is an issue that's
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          2  important to the lesbian and gay community, but

          3  fundamentally it's a workers' rights issue. It's

          4  that people should get equal pay and equal benefits

          5  for equal works, and having the Central Labor

          6  Committee out there so strongly in support of this

          7  bill makes that point abundantly clear, and I know

          8  the support will be a big part of what moves this

          9  bill forward. So, thank you for this, and for also

         10  mentioning that many of your unions have actually

         11  taken leadership steps and made this part of

         12  collective bargaining, and we obviously hope that

         13  when our bill becomes law, it will help support the

         14  private sector unions you represent and their

         15  efforts for all of their workers.

         16                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: Thank you.

         17                 One of the things that I was thinking

         18  about, not as I was preparing my remarks or making

         19  them here today, but I think it's appropriate to the

         20  comment you made that this isn't an issue that's

         21  really about one community. I think the thing that

         22  really comes to mind for me in a very personal way,

         23  we lost almost 700 of our members in the attack on

         24  September 11th, and one of the things that we know

         25  as leaders, but I think rang true with many others,
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          2  if they would just give thought to it, is how many

          3  of the people who perished that day or were injured

          4  that day had someone who loved them. And, so, this

          5  piece of legislation is really in recognition of all

          6  those who have partnerships and the love and the

          7  respect they have for one another and the right to

          8  provide a greater level of dignity and fairness and

          9  equal treatment for all of those workers and their

         10  partners.

         11                 And, so, I think that we've come a

         12  long way. I think as we discuss this more in

         13  community settings and in union halls and in other

         14  places, all will conclude that the vision that's

         15  been expressed by unions that have led the way is

         16  the right in just pass, it's guided by our moral

         17  compass, and I think that the work of the members

         18  here, in particular the sponsor of this legislation,

         19  that was the thought that went into it. It's much

         20  more than a one dimensional issue, which some would

         21  like to attack it as.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         23  much. Any other questions?

         24                 We appreciate it. We know that you're

         25  already late for your next appointment, so we're
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          2  going to allow you to be excused.

          3                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: I think what we

          4  should do, Mr. Chairman, if you don't mind, we want

          5  to put on our sneakers, and we want to walk to

          6  Albany until we've passed this bill.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That sounds good

          8  by me.

          9                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: Thank you for having

         10  me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now we're going

         12  to hear from Cynthia Goldstein, the San Francisco

         13  Human Rights Commission.

         14                 Ms. Goldstein.

         15                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Good afternoon,

         16  Council Member, Chair Jackson, members of the

         17  Committee and Council Member Quinn. First I would

         18  like to thank you very much for inviting me here

         19  today. I am the person in SanFrancisco who is

         20  responsible for enforcing our Equal Benefits Law,

         21  since its inception seven years ago, and our

         22  experience has been very positive.

         23                 San Francisco, as you know, was the

         24  first jurisdiction to pass legislation of this kind,

         25  and it has changed the lives of many people for the
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          2  better, and also helped advance San Francisco's

          3  interest in addressing and ending discrimination in

          4  the workforce.

          5                 What I'm hoping to do today is to

          6  talk to you about why our law has been successful

          7  and the laws that are in effect in seven other

          8  jurisdictions, and I hope that some of the

          9  information will help address any concerns that have

         10  been expressed and that were expressed earlier by

         11  the Administration.

         12                 First of all, Equal Benefits

         13  Legislation works because it does not cost

         14  contractors much money to comply with this

         15  legislation.

         16                 You have to keep in mind that what

         17  we're talking about here is not that companies have

         18  to offer any particular benefits. What we're asking

         19  for is that companies simply treat their employees

         20  who are married and their employees with domestic

         21  partners the same with respect to any benefits that

         22  they've already decided to offer.

         23                 Most of the time when people are

         24  concerned about cost they're talking and concerned

         25  about insurance cost, and fortunately there is over
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          2  20 years of actuarial data that's been gathered by

          3  the insurance industry to support the idea that

          4  domestic partner insurance does not cost a lot of

          5  money.

          6                 And it doesn't cost a lot of money

          7  for a few reasons. First of all, the start-up cost

          8  associated with offering domestic partner insurance

          9  is very minimal. Again, you're not rolling out a new

         10  benefits plan and incurring the costs associated

         11  with doing so. All you're doing is adding a new

         12  group of people, a new group of eligible people to

         13  benefits that you already have in place.

         14                 Secondly, the ongoing cost of

         15  offering domestic partner insurance benefits is very

         16  minimal this actuarial data supports that there is

         17  usually an enrollment rate of one and three percent

         18  for domestic partner insurance, and for most

         19  companies, especially small and medium-sized

         20  companies, all they have to think about is what do

         21  they pay for the cost of insurance premiums for

         22  spouses, and they would be looking at a one to three

         23  percent increase in that cost for the insurance

         24  premiums for domestic partners.

         25                 Now, a lot of small companies don't
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          2  pay anything toward the cost of spousal insurance

          3  and, therefore, their cost to add domestic partner

          4  coverage is going to be zero.

          5                 Larger employers tend to be more

          6  concerned about the health care claims themselves,

          7  because instead of paying premiums they're actually

          8  paying the claims as self-insured companies. And

          9  it's good to know that the health care claims for

         10  domestic partners tend to be less than or equal to

         11  those of spouses.

         12                 The concerns that people seem to have

         13  about higher rate of HIV-related claims among

         14  domestic partners is unfounded and unsupported by

         15  this actuarial information, and to the extent that

         16  there are HIV-related claims, those claims are no

         17  more expensive than other types of major medical

         18  conditions, like heart disease and cancer.

         19                 In fact, one of the highest medical

         20  claims that companies experience is child birth

         21  related medical claims, and domestic partners tend

         22  to have a lower rate of pregnancy and therefore

         23  lower child birth related claims.

         24                 When you look at other types of

         25  benefits that are covered by this policy, things
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          2  like bereavement leave and family leave, those

          3  benefits are so inexpensive that most companies

          4  don't track the cost of those benefits even for

          5  their entire workforce, let alone be concerned about

          6  the cost of them for just this new group of eligible

          7  domestic partners.

          8                 So we know that the cost of offering

          9  benefits is not going to be significant, other

         10  people are concerned that it may be difficult for

         11  companies to find insurance that includes domestic

         12  partner coverage. And I have to say when San

         13  Francisco first passed its law, that was in fact a

         14  problem for us. There weren't that many insurance

         15  companies in the country that were willing to offer

         16  domestic partner insurance, but because of our law

         17  and the demand that it created in the insurance

         18  market, as well as the laws of other jurisdictions,

         19  there now is a national market for domestic partner

         20  insurance, and most insurance companies are

         21  responding to that. They realize that there are

         22  profits to be made there and they're interested in

         23  making those profits.

         24                 In fact, my office is currently

         25  undergoing a process of collecting information to
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          2  create a searchable web-based database for domestic

          3  partner inclusive insurance products, and we have at

          4  least three pages of them for New York State, and

          5  over a dozen that will offer insurance to small

          6  groups. So, I really think that to the extent that

          7  there is any concern, it's really already being

          8  addressed by the insurance market.

          9                 In terms of a concern that companies

         10  may be discouraged or deterred from contracting with

         11  the City because of the burden of complying with

         12  this legislation, we have not found that to be a

         13  problem in San Francisco.

         14                 Our compliance requirements, as is

         15  true in your law, are designed to be business

         16  friendly. The law allows for any company that's

         17  interested in complying to find a way to do so.

         18                 So, for instance, if a company needs

         19  some time to make changes to their employee benefits

         20  policies, maybe they have an employee handbook that

         21  needs to be revised, the law allows them time to do

         22  that while still going forward with their City

         23  contracting.

         24                 If they need to take time to wait til

         25  their next open enrollment, they can do that as
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          2  well, while still going forward with City

          3  contracting. They're not going to lose the

          4  opportunity to engage in contracts with the City

          5  while they comply with this legislation.

          6                 And also, if a company can't comply

          7  with the law because of reasons outside of control,

          8  for instance, if a company can't find an insurance

          9  product to cover its workforce, that includes

         10  domestic partners, the law is already written to

         11  address that circumstance. The company will not be

         12  penalized for the discrimination that's taking place

         13  in the insurance industry.

         14                 I know that the Administration raised

         15  some concerns about religious-based organizations,

         16  and those were also expressed before our law went

         17  into effect in SanFrancisco.

         18                 Elected officials in my City spent

         19  time working with the Bay area's religious

         20  communities to figure out how to maintain the City's

         21  relationship with these religious-based service

         22  providers, because as has been expressed here today,

         23  they're very important in helping to satisfy a lot

         24  of the social services needs of our residents.

         25                 As it turned out, the answer to this
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          2  concern was already written into our legislation,

          3  and I think you'll find it's already written into

          4  yours.

          5                 Again, you need to keep in mind that

          6  this legislation only requires that companies not

          7  discriminate between their married employees and

          8  their employees who are in domestic partnerships,

          9  and they can do that in a variety of different ways.

         10                 They can do it by offering benefits

         11  equally to those two groups of people, and they can

         12  do it because they don't have any benefits that they

         13  offer to people or don't have any employees, but

         14  they can also do it by offering benefits on a basis

         15  that's not related to an employee's marital status,

         16  or domestic partnership status. And this is the

         17  method that a lot of the religious-based

         18  organizations in the bay area have chosen.

         19                 What they have done is they have

         20  allowed each employee to elect one other adult

         21  member of the household to be eligible for benefits.

         22  That can be a spouse, a domestic partner, it can be

         23  a sibling, it can be a parent, a roommate, anybody

         24  else that they live with who they would like to have

         25  as eligible for benefits.
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          2                 And really, if you think about this

          3  as a law that is designed to encourage equal pay for

          4  equal work, that really takes this concept further,

          5  and there are some for-profit organizations that

          6  have found this to be a more palatable way of

          7  complying with this legislation, including Bank of

          8  America, and JP Morgan Chase Bank. Some of this

          9  nation's largest companies are doing this as well as

         10  some of the religious-based organizations.

         11                 Now, I talked about the cost in

         12  impact on the contractor, I'd like just to take a

         13  minute to talk about the impact on the City as a

         14  contracting entity.

         15                 We have found that there is no

         16  significant impact to our contracting costs as a

         17  result of this legislation.

         18                 There was a study done in 1999 of

         19  some streams of contracting both before and after

         20  the law went into effect, and it found that there

         21  was absolutely no statistically significant change

         22  in the amount of dollars spent for these particular

         23  contracts.

         24                 And since the company's aren't going

         25  to be incurring any costs associated with complying,
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          2  there won't be costs for them to pass onto the City.

          3  There also won't be a discouragement for them to

          4  comply because of the fact that the law is written

          5  in a business friendly manner.

          6                 To the extent that we did experience

          7  any decrease in the number of bidders on our

          8  contracts, it was very short lived, we learned that

          9  complying wasn't a reason to refrain from City

         10  business and market forces drew companies back into

         11  competition.

         12                 We have returned very quickly to

         13  having a very robust pool of competitively priced

         14  and qualified bidders.

         15                 In fact, only the only companies that

         16  have been lost to our contracting activity are those

         17  companies who have expressed philosophical

         18  objections to this type of legislation, and really

         19  it is exactly those people, or those entities that

         20  this legislation is designed to eliminate from the

         21  City contracting because that is where the taxpayer

         22  dollar should not go.

         23                 There are also some significant

         24  benefits that you will find if you pass this

         25  legislation. I'm sure New York City, just as San
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          2  Francisco, would like to receive the best quality

          3  products and services for its dollar, and we have

          4  found that when products and services are delivered

          5  by employees who are treated fairly, then you do get

          6  the best quality.

          7                 Studies have confirmed that domestic

          8  partner benefits are among the top recruitment and

          9  retention tools available in the workforce, and also

         10  that company loyalty directly correlates to the

         11  quality of services and products produced.

         12                 So if you offer employees domestic

         13  partner benefits and treat them fairly, they will in

         14  fact product a better product for your dollar.

         15                 We've also found that there are some

         16  financial savings on the fact that domestic partners

         17  and their children have moved from needing public

         18  health care to being covered by private insurance.

         19                 In San Francisco we contract with

         20  businesses from around the globe, but we found that

         21  around 40 percent of our contractors are based in

         22  the City itself, and when we applied the actuarial

         23  statistics of one to three percent to the number of

         24  people working for those contractors, we found that

         25  there are about 24,000 adults that no longer will
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          2  need the City's public health services as a result

          3  of this legislation, and that doesn't even take into

          4  account the children associated with them.

          5                 So, very briefly, I just want to

          6  cover the highlights of our compliance experience.

          7  The number of companies in the country that offer

          8  domestic partner benefits have increased over

          9  ten-fold since our law went into effect. We have

         10  9,000 companies in our contracting pool who comply

         11  with our legislation, and these companies employ

         12  over 2 million people throughout the country in 40

         13  states and in over 600 cities.

         14                 And I think it's important to note

         15  that these companies also are of all different

         16  sizes. There are times when people will say that you

         17  can't comply because I'm a small company, I can't

         18  comply because I'm a large company, and in fact the

         19  sizes of companies in compliance with our law

         20  mirrors the sizes of companies in the business

         21  community in the country in general.

         22                 In addition to talking about the hard

         23  numbers, I think it's very important to note that

         24  there are some very important features of this

         25  legislation that can't be quantified but are
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          2  extremely valuable.

          3                 How do you quantify what it means to

          4  an individual employee if you go to work knowing

          5  that their partner is covered for any medical needs

          6  that they might have, or that they can take time off

          7  to care and support a partner in a time of

          8  bereavement, or that when they retire they'll be

          9  able to condition their retirement benefits in a way

         10  that their partner will be protected in the event

         11  that the employee dies first. And I think most

         12  important, but most difficult to try and quantify is

         13  the value that's added when a person feels the

         14  dignity that they feel when they go to work knowing

         15  that they're going to be treated equally as their

         16  co-workers.

         17                 I have a couple of very minor

         18  suggestions for the legislation before you. The very

         19  last line of the bill says that there would be a

         20  60-day window between when the law is passed and

         21  when it goes into effect, and I would really

         22  encourage you to consider extending that perhaps to

         23  90 days or longer. I think you'll need a little more

         24  time to ramp up and get this thing off the ground.

         25                 I also want to respond to one thing
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          2  in particular that the Administration said, the

          3  concern that there would be a competitive advantage

          4  to companies outside of the City, we have found that

          5  although companies are allowed under the law to

          6  comply on a limited geographic basis only in San

          7  Francisco and where the work is being performed, 99

          8  percent of the companies in compliance with our

          9  legislation have chosen to comply company-wide.

         10                 Once they see that this is not an

         11  expensive thing and it's a good thing for their

         12  workforce, they don't choose to limit it on a

         13  geographic basis, they do it company-wide. So, I

         14  really don't think that that is a concern.

         15                 New York City's equal benefits law is

         16  a practical, economically sound measure that

         17  addresses significant inequities in the workplace

         18  and provides the City with a way to avoid spending

         19  taxpayer dollars in support of discriminatory

         20  practices, I strongly encourage your support of this

         21  measure.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I want to

         24  thank you for your testimony, it was very

         25  comprehensive, and to the point, and we appreciate

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  your experience as someone that oversees this in San

          3  Francisco and from a historical perspective, as you

          4  indicated, it's been in existence for seven years,

          5  and so you've basically communicated to us what we

          6  expect to see, hopefully down the road, in New York

          7  City, and hopefully not in seven years but in two or

          8  three years, that would be great.

          9                 So, I want to open up the floor to my

         10  colleagues for any questions.

         11                 Dr. Stewart.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Mr. Chair, I

         13  would just like for us to look before we pass our

         14  version of the bill, that we look to the definition

         15  of the bill that was passed in San Francisco, as far

         16  as domestic partnership is concerned, because I feel

         17  that we would like to include all those people that

         18  I spoke about, like two adult sisters living in the

         19  home, or adults, mother and daughter, that may want

         20  to extend their benefits, and I feel we can lift the

         21  definition there and we can then incorporate it in

         22  our law.

         23                 Also, I would like to know why is it

         24  that we waited so long, if San Francisco had it for

         25  seven years already and we have seen the benefits
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          2  over there, why we waited so long to really put this

          3  together? Maybe they were waiting for us to get into

          4  Council.

          5                 All right, nevertheless, I thank you

          6  for your testimony, and this put a lot of clarity to

          7  some of the confusion that we had earlier, and I

          8  thank you for your testimony. Thank you very much.

          9                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I can

         11  respond to why it's taken so long. I mean, I

         12  remember when the legislation as far as the no

         13  discrimination law was passed, and at the bill

         14  signing ceremony after this Council passed it and

         15  the Mayor signed it into law, people were crying

         16  with happiness at the fact that they have waited for

         17  years, and I heard Margarita Lopez, who was in the

         18  Council before, that it could not be passed with the

         19  previous Council under the previous leadership of

         20  the previous Speaker, and so I'm glad to hear that

         21  this is moving forward in our first term of office,

         22  even though it's at the last part of our first term,

         23  it is moving forward, and to the best of my

         24  knowledge, based on the number of people that signed

         25  on as a primary sponsor, it should be hopefully
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          2  passed into law soon.

          3                 I'm going to recognize my colleague

          4  Margarita Lopez, and then my colleague from Queens.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am curious in

          6  listening a little more about the case that you

          7  refer here of one of the religious-based

          8  institutions that chose not to continue doing

          9  business with the City.

         10                 I want to ask you, once that

         11  happened, and that particular organization decide

         12  not to continue contracting with the City, the lack

         13  of services between this particular organization not

         14  wanting to do it, and the provision of services

         15  eventually, what was the interval that occurred, and

         16  if quickly other organizations came forward to take

         17  over what was left by that particular organization?

         18                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Actually, there was no

         19  interval of service being unavailable.

         20                 What happened is that when this

         21  company, this religious-based organization decided

         22  that it was not going to comply with the

         23  legislation, the way the law works, it would only

         24  apply to future contracts, it doesn't apply to

         25  contracts that are already in existence.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

          3                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: So, we knew that the

          4  contracts were going to be expiring at the end of

          5  the fiscal year, they were put out to bid, and in

          6  fact what happened is that this religious-based

          7  organization was able to raise private donations to

          8  continue to provide most of the social services that

          9  it had been providing with city funding, and the

         10  city was then able to free up the funding it had

         11  been giving that organization to pay for other

         12  social services, so there was actually a net gain to

         13  the City in this circumstance.

         14                 There was one type of contracting

         15  activity that this agency had been doing and was the

         16  only one willing to do, and in that circumstance the

         17  City was able to request and obtain a sole source

         18  waiver to allow that organization to continue with

         19  that particular service.

         20                 So, you know, in the situation where

         21  there is no one else willing to do the work, the law

         22  has already taken that into consideration and it has

         23  a mechanism to address it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, let's

         25  get real here, and let's talk about certain points
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          2  that need to be clarified. Every contract that the

          3  City put out there funding social services is an

          4  economic contract, is dollars and cents, correct?

          5                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And the purpose

          7  of this is to buy services from the part of the

          8  City, from the part of the individual who is selling

          9  that services.

         10                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And what we're

         12  talking about here is purely an economic transaction

         13  that occurred. And when we talk about that,

         14  therefore, when you mentioned this particular

         15  situation, I just want to bring back all of us to

         16  the clear understanding that it's millions of

         17  dollars that the City of New York in this case put

         18  out there to contract to buy services to deliver to

         19  the people of New York, and is irrelevant who

         20  delivered those services.

         21                 That is the same experience that you

         22  have in San Francisco?

         23                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's right. And

         24  actually a little bit of history, the reason that

         25  this legislation even exists today is because there
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          2  were people who were coming forward to express the

          3  concern about going and using certain

          4  religious-based organizations social services

          5  programs because they were feeling discriminated

          6  against in their experience as clients of those

          7  programs, and community organizers looked at that

          8  problem and said what can they do, what can we as a

          9  City do to address that problem and ensure that our

         10  contractors do not create a barrier between their

         11  client because of discrimination, in this case

         12  sexual orientation-based discrimination.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, my last

         14  point, and it's just a point of clarification from

         15  you, I was listening to the Mayor's side in arguing

         16  that this is a social policy. I feel very strongly

         17  that this is an economic policy and not a social

         18  policy.

         19                 The position that the SanFrancisco

         20  legislature took in regard to this was that the

         21  health benefit is a social policy, or an economic

         22  policy? I would like clarification from part of you,

         23  part in reason because when health insurance was

         24  born for workers, was based on this exploitation

         25  that the owners of the business was doing the

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  workers, creating sickness on those workers, and in

          3  top of that, many of the sickness were permanent

          4  sickness, that those workers did not have the means

          5  to take care of their health, and therefore, many of

          6  the illnesses as a result of the job that they were

          7  doing in the place where they were working. And when

          8  we talk about health provision of services inside of

          9  the connection of being contracted to do a job, I

         10  cannot understand from where this coming that this

         11  is social service policy. Can you clarify this for

         12  me?

         13                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: I don't think I can.

         14  And, unfortunately, I don't think I can speak on

         15  behalf of the City of San Francisco legislators

         16  because I am not an elected official myself.

         17                 But I can say that this measure is

         18  designed to be, it is in our City's contracting

         19  legislation, and it is designed to direct our

         20  taxpayer contracting dollars. So, to the extent that

         21  it helps you address that question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 I may be sound, but I am too insane

         25  about this, is that you know workers historically
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          2  when through hell in every city in every part of the

          3  planet to conquer having health insurance benefits,

          4  and to categorize this as a social policy is I think

          5  an insult to the struggle that unions went through

          6  in order to conquer this benefit. And this is not

          7  social policy.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          9  Katz of Queens.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I thank you, Ms.

         11  Goldstein, for your testimony. I must apologize, I

         12  was not here for the Mayor's Office's testimony, and

         13  I have a meeting at 3:30, but I was very anxious to

         14  hear yours.

         15                 My problem with this, I don't see

         16  what the big deal is. I mean, it seems to me, and it

         17  is a discussion I was just having, I don't see what

         18  the big deal is. And I guess I'm reading your

         19  testimony and the Mayor's testimony and I haven't

         20  done this on a daily basis, like Council Member

         21  Quinn and Jackson, you know, as far as working on

         22  this legislation, but I'm reading the differences

         23  and the questions and answers and I don't understand

         24  what the big deal is. And I think I'm coming from it

         25  from a different perspective than Council Member
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          2  Lopez.

          3                 I think we dictate social policy

          4  every day. It's what we do. I mean, we allow no

          5  smoking in bars anymore, because that's a social

          6  policy. We have abortion policy, that's a social

          7  policy. We have domestic partnership that the City

          8  has, that's a social policy. So, I guess you can

          9  look at it from both perspectives, either this isn't

         10  a social policy, because it's a matter of just the

         11  right thing to do, and that is the right thing to

         12  do, or do it every day, and I don't think the City

         13  can really have it both ways.

         14                 But I have a question in that aspect.

         15  Number one, does San Francisco have the same

         16  domestic partnership law that we have in New York?

         17                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: In terms of your

         18  registration?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, the

         20  registry and stuff. Is that the same?

         21                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: I haven't compared the

         22  registries themselves, but we do have a registry,

         23  it's open to same and opposite sex couples.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

         25                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: And for benefits to
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          2  our own employees, of course.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm just trying

          4  to establish whether we're working sort of in the

          5  same guidelines, you know what I mean? If the City

          6  has a policy of having the registry here, they've

          7  already set the policy and they've already said that

          8  that is acceptable and that's what we should be

          9  doing because it's human rights and that's the deal

         10  there. So, I wanted to make sure that San Francisco

         11  is the same.

         12                 The city, from the reading that I

         13  had, said that there would be less competition, and

         14  that they were worried that some of the companies

         15  might pull out of the bidding process in the City.

         16  Did you find that that's the case in San Francisco?

         17                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: It's not the case. And

         18  as I said before, I think that to the extent that's

         19  a concern, it's a very short-lived concern, that as

         20  companies come to the conclusion that it doesn't

         21  cost a lot of money and it's easy to comply with,

         22  they will return to City contracting for those that

         23  even leave in the first place.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So there wasn't

         25  a marked decrease in competition for the businesses.
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          2                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: People just

          4  added domestic partnership to their benefit package

          5  and that was it.

          6                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: That's right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Was it smaller

          8  companies also that were able to do that?

          9                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Companies of all

         10  sizes. I mean, smaller companies had a little

         11  trouble in the beginning because the insurance

         12  products weren't there but those insurance products

         13  are now available through the country. So, I really

         14  don't think that's an issue. And for smaller

         15  companies, most of them don't pay anything toward

         16  the cost of spousal insurance premiums, so they're

         17  not going to be paying anything to add this, all

         18  they have to do is call their insurer and say we'd

         19  like to add domestic partner coverage to our rider,

         20  they say great, the end. The employee pays for the

         21  cost of it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And I gather

         23  there wasn't any social outcry?

         24                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: There was no social

         25  outcry. It was considered to be a positive step for
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          2  the City.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, obviously.

          4                 I really find that the comparison of

          5  San Francisco and New York was very good for us to

          6  hear, and to know that in another major City it was

          7  done without skipping a beat, and I thank you.

          8                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         10  Quinn.

         11                 I just want to thank Cynthia for

         12  coming to New York today to give the testimony, and

         13  also thank her for all of the health and advice

         14  she's given my staff, Council Member Jackson's staff

         15  and the staff to the Contracts Committee, and in

         16  advance, to thank you for the future help you'll be

         17  giving us between now and passage.

         18                 But I really think it's important to

         19  note that the bill we're hearing today has been so

         20  informed by the experience of San Francisco, which

         21  is the most responsible way to pass legislation, by

         22  looking at what others have done learning from it.

         23  It has been unbelievably accessible and

         24  accommodating to the New York City Council in making

         25  sure that we learned everything we could from San
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          2  Francisco, in really I think arming us with

          3  fact-based ammunition to respond to all people who

          4  will try to oppose this bill, either those who are

          5  actually confused, and will be compelled by the

          6  facts or those who are opposed for other reasons but

          7  will hide behind financial and other concerns. The

          8  info you've given us will clear those up who are

          9  really concerned and expose the others who are not

         10  really concerned for any reasonable reasons but just

         11  blatantly for discriminatory reasons.

         12                 So, thank you very much, and I hope I

         13  will see you at the bill signing. If not, we'll make

         14  sure you're here for the veto override.

         15                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: That sounds fantastic.

         16  Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 I would like to recognize our

         19  colleague from Manhattan Alan Gerson.

         20                 Welcome, Alan.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. And I thank you for the opportunity of

         23  allowing me to participate as a guest of this

         24  Committee. I'm having one of those days which we all

         25  have, but I wanted to be here to show support for
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          2  this very important bill and very important step

          3  forward towards our quest to full human rights for

          4  all.

          5                 So, I want to congratulate you and

          6  the sponsors and, again, I'm here as a show of

          7  support for the importance of this hearing and this

          8  bill.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         11                 Our next panel will be Alan Van

         12  Capelle, from the Empire State Pride Agenda; Francis

         13  Martinez, and Saul Nieves from 32BJ; and Daryl

         14  Herrschaft, the Human Rights Campaign.

         15                 Welcome.

         16                 Good afternoon. And I'm going to ask,

         17  would you please raise your right hand.

         18                 Do you swear the testimony that you

         19  will give today will be the whole truth and that

         20  regarding the subject here today?

         21                 MR. VAN CAPELLE: I do.

         22                 MS. MARTINEZ: I do.

         23                 MR. BOLDEN: I do.

         24                 MR. HERRSCHAFT: I do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Would you
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          2  please speak into the mic and state your name and

          3  affiliation, if any, for the record.

          4                 Starting over here, I guess.

          5                 MR. HERRSCHAFT: I'm Daryl Herrschaft,

          6  Deputy Director for Worknet at the Human Rights

          7  Campaign.

          8                 MR. VAN CAPELLE: I'm Alan Van

          9  Capelle, the Executive Director of the Empire State

         10  Pride Agenda.

         11                 MS. MARTINEZ: I'm Francis Martinez.

         12  I'm here for 32BJ. I'm a member of 32BJ.

         13                 MR. BOLDEN: I'm Trevor Bolden. I'm

         14  sitting in for Saul Nieves for 32BJ.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Why don't we

         16  start over here and work our way across; is that

         17  okay?

         18                 MR. HERRSCHAFT: Thank you. I'd like

         19  to thank the New York City Council and the Committee

         20  on Contracts for the opportunity to address you

         21  today.

         22                 My name is Darryl Herrschaft, and I

         23  am employed at the Human Rights Campaign, which is

         24  the nation's largest lesbian, gay, bisexual,

         25  transgender Civil Rights organization.
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          2                 We have over 500,000 members

          3  nationwide and including slightly more than 20,000

          4  in the City of New York.

          5                 HRC's Worknet project has been

          6  tracking employment policies covering gay men and

          7  lesbians since at least 1993, and I've been employed

          8  at HRC and intimately involved in those efforts

          9  since 1998. My testimony today will focus on health

         10  insurance benefits, arguably the most important one,

         11  provided by employers.

         12                 The proposed Equal Benefits Law we're

         13  discussing today will benefit New York City and does

         14  not pose an undue hardship to business. By extending

         15  the values of New York City's anti-discrimination

         16  laws to its contracting requirements, the City will

         17  help these companies increase their overall

         18  productivity and competitiveness through developing

         19  a more inclusive workplace environment.

         20                 The Human Rights Campaign has tracked

         21  more than 5,800 employers operating in all 50 states

         22  that already provide domestic partner benefits. The

         23  first employer to provide benefits to its employees

         24  same sex partners was New York's own Village Voice

         25  in 1982.

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Today, 30 of the 41 Fortune companies

          3  based in New York City, or roughly 75 percent

          4  provide domestic partner benefits. Nationally, 202

          5  or 40 percent of those Fortune 500 companies do so.

          6                 Thirty-nine of the 55 companies in

          7  New York State, or 71 percent also provide domestic

          8  partner benefits.

          9                 Companies that provide them include

         10  major New York City contractors, such as IBM, Time

         11  Warner Cable, The Legal Aid Society, Motorola, KPMG,

         12  Accenture and Cablevision Systems.

         13                 Several companies have even written

         14  letters in support of the Council's effort on this

         15  legislation. These include Merrill Lynch, Verizon,

         16  Sea Containers, Orient-Express Hotels and Viacom.

         17                 Employers seeking to implement

         18  domestic partner health insurance benefits in the

         19  City or State of New York face no legal or

         20  regulatory impediment, and to the best of our

         21  knowledge, that is true in most other cities and

         22  states as well.

         23                 The most common concern companies

         24  call on are verifying the relationship and

         25  controlling cost. New York City provides a means of
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          2  verifying its relationships through its own domestic

          3  partner registry which will eliminate the

          4  administrative burden for companies that develop

          5  internal documents.

          6                 The bill will also allow employees to

          7  register in any of these 65 other state or local

          8  jurisdictions that recognize domestic partners,

          9  including in New York, Albany, East Hampton, Ithaca,

         10  Rochester, South Hampton and Westchester County.

         11                 For employers operating outside New

         12  York some jurisdictions allow non-residents to

         13  register their relationship, and employers seeking a

         14  uniform policy to govern multiple locations can

         15  avail themselves of the many affidavits of domestic

         16  partnerships that are available and already in use

         17  at other companies.

         18                 Another common concern is cost. As

         19  Cynthia Goldstein said, more than 20 years of

         20  experience as administering these benefits, we now

         21  have hard data to demonstrate the cost is usually

         22  negligible.

         23                 Providing coverage to an individual

         24  domestic partner is no more expensive than providing

         25  coverage to a spouse, in terms of cost. And one fact
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          2  that keeps cost down is that enrollment rates are

          3  low.

          4                 Our 1997 survey by the Society for

          5  Human Resource Management found that 85 percent of

          6  respondents reported no increase in their health

          7  care costs as a result of offering domestic partner

          8  benefits.

          9                 Many executives have also reported

         10  that the advantages to domestic partner benefits

         11  outweigh the cost. These include improved

         12  recruitment potential, higher productivity, lower

         13  turn-over, and a reputation as a diverse employer.

         14                 We at HRC know how highly employees

         15  value these benefits.

         16                 A couple of years ago we surveyed

         17  several hundred gay and lesbian employees at a

         18  Fortune 50 firm, that happens to be based in New

         19  York State and has a large presence in this City.

         20                 Sixty-seven percent of the

         21  respondents told us that domestic partner benefits

         22  were a requirement for them to take another job, and

         23  92 percent said that the benefits increased the

         24  likelihood that they would remain at their current

         25  employer for the next 12 months.
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          2                 A 1999 study again by the Society for

          3  Human Resource Management, found that Domestic

          4  Partner Benefits were the number one recruiting tool

          5  for executives and the number three recruiting

          6  incentive for managers and line workers. In fact,

          7  the most successful companies in the United States

          8  are more likely to offer domestic partner benefits.

          9                 If you look at the Fortune 500, there

         10  are 40 percent that provide them. If you look at the

         11  Fortune 50, the top half of that list, a full 74

         12  percent of those companies offer them.

         13                 HRC believes that these benefits are

         14  good for business and an important step toward

         15  providing all employees equal pay for equal work.

         16                 Further, as a market participant, we

         17  believe New York City would be well served by

         18  contracting with the most forward-thinking

         19  businesses.

         20                 We strongly endorse this legislation

         21  and pledge to work with the City of New York in any

         22  way that we can to help it, and once again, thank

         23  you for the opportunity to testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Chair, if I

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  could just jump in with a commercial -- well, not a

          3  commercial announcement, just a point, before the

          4  testimony goes forward?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I want to thank

          7  all the groups that have been very helpful to us in

          8  this process. I particularly want to thank Alan and

          9  Sabrina and the Empire State Pride Agenda who have

         10  been partners to myself and the Chair and this

         11  Committee in this effort and its predecessor, Matt

         12  Forman, for the almost two years we've been working

         13  on this initiative, and we wouldn't. I know for a

         14  fact we wouldn't have 36 and growing sponsors, if it

         15  wasn't for the Empire State Pride Agenda, and their

         16  leading work in New York City on this issue. So, I

         17  just want to very much thank you and say I don't

         18  really want that point to get lost as we move

         19  forward into the nitty-gritty of the legislative

         20  process.

         21                 MR. HERRSCHAFT: Thank you,

         22  Councilwoman.

         23                 MR. VAN CAPELLE: Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Alan Van Capelle. I am the Executive

         25  Director of the Empire State Pride Agenda. We are
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          2  New York's statewide lesbian and gay civil rights

          3  and political advocacy organization. We are also the

          4  largest statewide LGBT organization in the nation,

          5  and in behalf of our thousands of members across New

          6  York State, and particularly our members here in New

          7  York City, I am really pleased to be here and speak

          8  in support of Intro. 271.

          9                 Let me take this moment to thank the

         10  City Council and the Contracts Committee for holding

         11  these hearings, and in particular, our prime

         12  sponsor, Council Member Christine Quinn, for her

         13  hard work and dedication to the issue of justice and

         14  the quality, I know there's a saying, the arch of

         15  history bends and it bends towards justice, it bends

         16  a little further towards justice because of

         17  Christine Quinn, and I would also like to thank

         18  Chairman Jackson. He's not only been a good friend

         19  to me personally, but is also a terrific friend of

         20  the LGBT community, and we thank you, sir.

         21                 First and foremost, for the pride

         22  agenda, domestic partnership benefits are about

         23  equal pay for equal work. Employees who share their

         24  lives with an unmarried partner should not be denied

         25  paid benefits for their families when co-workers
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          2  with spouses are given those benefits at work. It is

          3  simply a matter of a quality and a fairness, nothing

          4  more and nothing less.

          5                 And on a more practical level,

          6  however, domestic partnership benefits can be the

          7  difference between a person seeing a doctor and not

          8  seeing a doctor, receiving medication or not

          9  receiving medication.

         10                 And at a time when government on all

         11  levels continues to struggle with the question of

         12  how citizens will be able to afford quality health

         13  care, employers, particularly employers deriving

         14  income from City tax dollars, should not make health

         15  care accessible for some employees, families and not

         16  for others.

         17                 Obviously, this is a matter of

         18  particular importance to the gay, lesbian, bisexual

         19  and transgendered employees.

         20                 As we all know, civil marriage is not

         21  yet an available option for same sex couples,

         22  regardless of how long they have been a family, or

         23  their level of dependence on each other. Domestic

         24  partnership benefits may represent the only way both

         25  members of a same sex couple will ever be able to
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          2  attain access to health care coverage.

          3                 And let me say domestic partner

          4  benefits are not, however, only important to LGBT

          5  employees. A variety of individuals can live

          6  together and form families without ever being

          7  married.

          8                 Some are restricted from being

          9  married because of lingering legal restrictions of a

         10  prior marriage. Some, especially senior citizens, do

         11  not marry, for fear of losing retirement or other

         12  benefits from a previous spouse, and some defer

         13  marriage due to the religious differences of their

         14  families, and others simply have a philosophical

         15  difference with the institution, but whatever the

         16  reason, people in a variety of circumstances can

         17  take advantage of domestic partner methods, not only

         18  same sex partners.

         19                 In fact, for most localities that

         20  have instituted domestic partnership recognition

         21  mechanisms, a majority of people who have taken

         22  advantage of them have been people in arrangements

         23  other than LGBT households.

         24                 Fortunately, the private sector, as

         25  my friends from the Human Rights Campaign has said,
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          2  has long recognized the value of providing DP

          3  benefits.

          4                 More than a decade ago in 1990, no

          5  Fortune 500 company offered insurance for domestic

          6  partners. As of this year 202 companies, or 40

          7  percent, offer benefit. And by one account over

          8  5,800 employees nationally extend health care

          9  benefits to domestic partners. And these numbers

         10  continue to get larger as many national and area

         11  businesses recognize that discrimination frankly is

         12  inefficient and simply put, bad for business.

         13                 Employees who are lured away because

         14  of a benefit package include domestic partner

         15  benefits, will have to be replaced with less

         16  experienced employees who have to be retrained. But

         17  the Equal Benefits Bill, however, is more than just

         18  good employment practice. It recognizes that

         19  discrimination should not be financed by public

         20  dollars. It is simply wrong to use taxpayer money to

         21  support one set of employees in their families,

         22  while leaving another set of employees and their

         23  families out in the cold.

         24                 Other localities, as we've heard

         25  today, have recognized this injustice of allowing
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          2  public contractors to discriminate against some

          3  families and have passed laws saying they will not

          4  do business with companies that do not share their

          5  commitment to fairness for all citizens.

          6                 It is time, and, frankly, it's late

          7  for New York City -- it's not too late for New York

          8  City to correct this, but, frankly, we wish this

          9  would have happened sooner.

         10                 And to its credit, the City Council

         11  has worked hard to promote diversity and equality

         12  for all New Yorkers, but there is still more to be

         13  done, and this City Council can do it.

         14                 This City Council recognized the need

         15  for a living wage, they recognize the need to stand

         16  against predatory lending, and the struggle for

         17  displaced building service workers, and now let's

         18  end taxpayer supported discrimination.

         19                 You know, New York City has gone out

         20  of its way to say that discrimination against people

         21  is wrong. Let me break down what I think this issue

         22  is. We have just identified the area where the

         23  values of New York City is different from your

         24  procurement practices. That's it. New York City and

         25  this City Council has said we have values, we're
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          2  going to run this City with a set of values that

          3  people should be treated equally, and with fairness

          4  and with dignity, and what we've identified here

          5  today, is that your procurement practices are

          6  opposite that. So all this is about is closing a

          7  loophole, maintaining the integrity of values that

          8  you have already espoused, have passed and this City

          9  agrees with.

         10                 The Pride Agenda recognize that

         11  issues involving economics can be the toughest for

         12  governments to grapple with. And let me tell you, we

         13  are proud to have allies here in City government. We

         14  remember what it was like not to have a lot of

         15  friends. We take our friendships and our alliances

         16  very seriously, and we ask you that you make real on

         17  the premise that has been codified in New York City

         18  for decades and say that not only do lesbian, gay,

         19  bisexual and transgendered individuals count here in

         20  New York City, but they count in my City and your

         21  City, that New York will not support businesses that

         22  discriminate against our community.

         23                 I have to say, it's a real thrill for

         24  me to be here after representing my sister to the

         25  left at 32BJ and talking about economic justice and
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          2  social fairness, it's a really weird thing if you're

          3  a gay person speaking in front of a City Council,

          4  because unless the Council Member is gay, you all

          5  have more rights than we do, and it's a very

          6  humbling experience. And if you pass this bill, it

          7  goes a long way into correcting that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, Alan,

          9  for coming in. And you are indeed a friend and a

         10  true advocate, and everyone should be proud in your

         11  new capacity as Executive Director for Empire State

         12  Pride Agenda, because I am.

         13                 MR. VAN CAPELLE: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 MS. MARTINEZ: Good afternoon,

         16  Chairman, Chairperson Jackson, and all the members

         17  of the Contracts Committee.

         18                 My name is Francis Martinez, and I

         19  appreciate the opportunity to be here today to

         20  represent Social Service Employees International

         21  Union, Local 32BJ, to show our support for Intro.

         22  271, the Equal Benefits Bill.

         23                 Local 32BJ is the union of 70,000

         24  building service workers in New York City and the

         25  tristate region. I have been a member for five
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          2  years, and I am currently working with the Social

          3  Economics Justice Committee of the Local to address

          4  the concerns of lesbians and gay members and their

          5  domestic partners, also members with gay relatives.

          6                 The overwhelming majority of our

          7  members work for community contractors and property

          8  management that are contracts by building owners.

          9                 We know how important it is to

         10  protect workers' wages, benefits, standards, for the

         11  cost-saving effort of contractors. Some of our

         12  members work for City contractors that would be

         13  covered by this bill.

         14                 But just one example is, over 200

         15  members of maintenance housing units owned by New

         16  York City Department of Housing Preservation and

         17  Development. Domestic partner benefits have become

         18  extended benefits, not only for City workers, but

         19  also for many private sectors of employees.

         20                 We support your effort to extend the

         21  benefit standards to the City contractors. Although

         22  they are not currently available for domestic

         23  partner benefits under our joint industry union

         24  fund, our unions believe that the building service

         25  workers should have these benefits.
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          2                 As someone who had a domestic partner

          3  for ten years, I understand how important these

          4  benefits will be for some of our members and their

          5  families.

          6                 I am proud that our union is

          7  supporting this legislation, in an effort to require

          8  City contractors, property managers and cleaning

          9  contractors, to provide equal benefits to building

         10  service workers, who have domestic partners.

         11                 Finally, passage of this legislation

         12  will not only help City contract workers, but will

         13  also help create an element in the City so that

         14  partner benefits will be available to all workers in

         15  New York City.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

         18  for your testimony on behalf of your union, and let

         19  me tell you, 32BJ is clearly a union that is trying

         20  to look after the rights and benefits of its

         21  employees.

         22                 As you know, your involvement in the

         23  displaced workers bill protects tens of thousands of

         24  the members that you represent, and your involvement

         25  in the Living Wage bill and other legislation that
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          2  we have passed have been clearly instrumental,

          3  without a doubt 32BJ is a force to be reckoned with,

          4  and we acknowledge that.

          5                 I want to open the floor up to any of

          6  my colleagues.

          7                 Council Member Alan Gerson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just since you

          9  recognized me, I want to thank and congratulate all

         10  the witnesses who testified for your leadership in

         11  this ongoing struggle, and I think your testimony

         12  speaks for itself. Thank you very much.

         13                 And also, thank you to my colleague

         14  Chris Quinn, for your leadership and sponsorship of

         15  this bill.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I

         17  just wanted to thank all of the witnesses,

         18  particularly thank Ms. Martinez for taking time to

         19  come down here today. You know, facts and figures

         20  and the experience of San Francisco are obviously

         21  very important to these efforts, but nothing is more

         22  important than hearing from individuals and workers

         23  who could benefit from pieces of legislation and who

         24  could benefit from the Equal Benefits Bill, and, you

         25  know, my only regret is the Mayor's Office wasn't
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          2  here to hear you, and we'll make sure we send them a

          3  copy of your testimony, because in all of their

          4  legal mumbo-jumbo, they should remember that we're

          5  talking about people and their partners and families

          6  who need health care and who don't have it, and your

          7  story certainly made that clear. So, thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 And, again, I want to thank the Pride

         10  Agenda and also the Human Rights Campaign who has

         11  been very helpful to our efforts that relates to

         12  coordinating with businesses, and getting us

         13  information and contact there. So, I want to thank

         14  both of you very much for that, and look forward to

         15  our future work.

         16                 MS. MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dr. Stewart of

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair.

         21                 I just want to thank you all for your

         22  testimony. But I want to caution you a little, that

         23  I don't see this as a gay and lesbian bill. This is

         24  equal rights for all, equal opportunities for all,

         25  regardless of religion sex orientation or race,
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          2  whatever it is, it's equal opportunity, equal rights

          3  for all, and that's what I want to promote it as,

          4  and not necessarily one part of the bill. The entire

          5  bill should be equal rights for all, because

          6  sometimes it may not have to do anything with sex,

          7  as far as your partner is concerned. It's just that

          8  we want you to know that everyone should have the

          9  same equal rights, the same equal opportunities to

         10  get the same benefits, and I want to thank you again

         11  for your testimony.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, Dr.

         14  Stewart.

         15                 Council Member Lopez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes. One of the

         17  members of 32BJ testified that you have a domestic

         18  partner, you had.

         19                 MS. MARTINEZ: Not now.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No more. But at

         21  the time that you had that domestic partner, did the

         22  person in question have health coverage independent

         23  of you, or did not?

         24                 MS. MARTINEZ: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Didn't.
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          2                 And, therefore, if you have health

          3  coverage and the person did not, what the person did

          4  for the purpose of medical care?

          5                 MS. MARTINEZ: She paid for her own

          6  coverage. She had to pay at a private company to

          7  have health coverage.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But did the

          9  person work?

         10                 MS. MARTINEZ: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: At the time?

         12                 MS. MARTINEZ: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then it was not

         14  provided to the person through the place where she

         15  work, therefore, she paid separate and apart from

         16  it.

         17                 MS. MARTINEZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's the way

         19  the she got it.

         20                 Do you have children?

         21                 MS. MARTINEZ: No, I don't.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you have

         23  children in common?

         24                 MS. MARTINEZ: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: At the time?
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          2  No.

          3                 Then the price that was paid by your

          4  partner was paid based on an individual insurance,

          5  not because it was an insurance that she was able to

          6  access through her work?

          7                 MS. MARTINEZ: She didn't have

          8  insurance through her work.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then she paid

         10  independently.

         11                 MS. MARTINEZ: She paid independently.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you remember

         13  how much money was this at the time?

         14                 MS. MARTINEZ: I can find out for you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No, no. The

         16  reason I am intrusive is because I'm trying to look

         17  into the question of how much it cost when this is

         18  not provided, because that's the real question here.

         19  How much money we have to spend in excess when we

         20  can be saving if this policy is put in place.

         21                 Yes.

         22                 MR. VAN CAPELLE: Councilwoman, maybe

         23  I can just give you a quick anecdote. We know of a

         24  family where there were two women and they shared a

         25  daughter with each other. They have been with each
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          2  other for ten years. One of the women in the

          3  relationship got sick with cancer, and because her

          4  partner's employer didn't offer domestic partnership

          5  benefits, she was forced to work through almost her

          6  entire illness. When she became too sick to work,

          7  she had to stop working and they had to pay $700 a

          8  month in Cobra payments for health care. As a

          9  working New Yorker, certainly, Councilwoman, you

         10  know how expensive $700 a month is. When she, at the

         11  very last weeks of her life, when she needed, when

         12  her partner wanted to be with her, they were denied

         13  family medical leave, because they were told they're

         14  not a family. This was a very big issue.

         15                 So, not only do people have issues of

         16  money and being able to see a doctor, but imagine, I

         17  mean so many New Yorkers who are sick, not being

         18  able to take care of your partner. I mean, it really

         19  is -- folks want to be responsible for the people

         20  they love, and that means having a job that, you

         21  you, if my partner gets sick, make sure that he has

         22  health insurance, and that was $700 a month.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In regard of

         24  the members of the union that you are part of, are

         25  you aware of a lot of members of the union who
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          2  sustain domestic partnership relationship ties? --

          3  And I am not trying to identify if they are gay or

          4  straight, I just want to know if you are aware of

          5  many of these relationships, and if that's the case,

          6  that the partners of those people, where they go for

          7  health care?

          8                 MS. MARTINEZ: We do know that there

          9  are lesbian and gay members of our union who have

         10  domestic partners. We have no reason to believe that

         11  this will be our case among our City contracted

         12  membership, because there are a lot of them, and I

         13  know a lot of them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are you aware

         15  of what the members of the union do when they have a

         16  partner that is not covered, where this partner goes

         17  for health care? Do they go to the public hospital?

         18                 MS. MARTINEZ: I believe some of them

         19  do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's where

         21  they go.

         22                 MS. MARTINEZ: And a lot of them have

         23  private insurance.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This is another

         25  good reason to pass this bill.
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          2                 MS. MARTINEZ: Yes, it is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Because when

          4  people don't have insurance, are forced to go to the

          5  public hospital, the public dollars are the one who

          6  pick up the tab, instead of being the companies who

          7  are hiring these families to work because at the end

          8  of the day, you know, United States recognize and

          9  the Social Security Administration, that when you

         10  are married with somebody for ten years or more, you

         11  are entitled to the Social Security of that person,

         12  and that's the work of the other person, right? If

         13  we recognize that, and we recognize, theoretically

         14  speaking, that couples have the right to benefit

         15  from the economic wealth that they put together, in

         16  here we're talking about the same concept and the

         17  purpose is to save money for the City at the end of

         18  the day.

         19                 MS. MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any other

         21  comments from my colleagues?

         22                 I want to thank all of you for coming

         23  in and participating in this hearing.

         24                 Next we're going to call State

         25  Senator Tom Duane and Diana Lynn Bodero, and State
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          2  Assemblymember Deborah Glick here, and Cynthia

          3  Stuart of Project Renewal. Please come forward.

          4                 Good afternoon, and welcome,

          5  everyone.

          6                 Tom, it's always a pleasure to see

          7  you as an advocate for the people of New York City.

          8  I appreciate you coming in and spending all of the

          9  time listening to the testimony, and readying

         10  yourself to give testimony this afternoon.

         11                 With that, I'm going to ask all of

         12  you to please state your name and your affiliation

         13  for the record.

         14                 SENATOR DUANE: New York State Senator

         15  Tom Duane.

         16                 MS. BODERO: Diana Lynn Bodero, Vice

         17  President of Human Resources, Housing Works.

         18                 MR. BENDER: Gregory Bender, Community

         19  Liaison for Assemblymember Deborah Glick.

         20                 MS. STUART: Cynthia Stewart,

         21  Communications Director for Project Renewal.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you please

         23  raise your right hand? Do you swear or affirm that

         24  the information that you are going to provide to

         25  this hearing this afternoon is the truth concerning
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          2  this subject of Intro. 271?

          3                 MR. BENDER: I do.

          4                 MS. BODERO: I do.

          5                 SENATOR DUANE: I do.

          6                 MS. STUART: I do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          8                 Senator, would you please begin.

          9                 SENATOR DUANE: Thank you very much

         10  for this opportunity. I'm pleased I haven't been

         11  called up from the audience as I was at an earlier

         12  hearing to discuss -- I wasn't subpoenaed but I was

         13  called up to address an issue where the Mayor's

         14  Office had claimed they had been in communication

         15  with me, but in fact have not. And I still haven't

         16  met their lobbyist from the Department of Education,

         17  which we in the State still call the Board of

         18  Education.

         19                 Anyway, it's nice to be here. Thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 I'm just going to make one point from

         22  my testimony and then a couple of points just in

         23  response to earlier testimony that I heard, and that

         24  is that, I just think it's a very important issue

         25  for people to keep in mind that when a company or an
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          2  organization conveys benefits onto a married

          3  employee, they're not getting that benefit because

          4  they're married, they're getting that benefit

          5  because they're an employee. So, to not give that

          6  benefit to those who have domestic partners is just

          7  discriminatory. It in fact means that the person

          8  with the domestic partner is getting paid less.

          9                 So, you don't get benefits because

         10  you're married, you actually do get benefits when

         11  you get married, which people who can't get married,

         12  same gender couples, are denied, but when a company

         13  conveys benefits to employees, it's not because

         14  they're married, they're not rewarded for being

         15  married, they're being rewarded by being employees

         16  and to not give the same -- it's not a reward, it's

         17  like an entitlement -- to domestic partners, is just

         18  wrong and discriminatory.

         19                 And then just on a couple of other

         20  issues, you know, I worked in the Comptroller's

         21  Office and you know, proudly the City's contracting

         22  can be used to advance social policy, and it is

         23  completely and totally and utterly appropriate, and

         24  for as far back Comptrollers that I remember in the

         25  City of New York, they have all done that and very
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          2  successfully, against discrimination in Northern

          3  Ireland, in South Africa, the list goes on. It's

          4  very, very, not only is it appropriate, but it is I

          5  think a requirement.

          6                 I'm interested, you know, the Mayor's

          7  representatives were going on and on about that they

          8  want to streamline the procurement process. The most

          9  important thing that happens with the procurement

         10  process in recent years is weeding out corruption

         11  and crooks, and that does take a little while, but

         12  it's totally appropriate then also to weed out

         13  companies with this bill that discriminate. If

         14  you're going to weed out crooks, you should weed out

         15  those who would discriminate against people who have

         16  domestic partners.

         17                 So, that should neither delay, that

         18  shouldn't delay the process anymore, because that

         19  kind of due diligence is already being done, and I

         20  think it's important for that kind of due diligence

         21  be done for companies providing services and goods

         22  to the City, in terms of what their practices are in

         23  regards to providing domestic partner benefits.

         24                 You know, this is a very impressive

         25  list of companies that you have put together, and
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          2  there were no companies that were raised by the

          3  Mayor's representatives that we're going to have a

          4  problem with it, and, you know, this bill has been

          5  kicking around for awhile, while this is the first

          6  hearing, it's been in the news for a very long time,

          7  and so there's enough notice about it that if there

          8  are problems from corporations and companies, we

          9  would have heard about them in a very public way.

         10                 So, I found that very, very

         11  uncompelling.

         12                 I did hear mentioned earlier the

         13  Power Authority, and I remember when I first went to

         14  Albany that a former Assemblyman, Rappier

         15  (phonetic), who was the Minority Leader in the

         16  Assembly, when he was the Executive Director, he

         17  provided domestic partner benefits. So, I'm going

         18  to, with my colleagues in the Legislature go and

         19  find out how that was removed, because in my mind,

         20  sort of it's a quasi-state agency, but it is still a

         21  state agency and they should be providing our

         22  benefits. So I will look into that and see what the

         23  problem is and why that benefit evaporated.

         24                 And then, you know, finally this is a

         25  time in the nation when there is a movement to
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          2  outlaw marriages between same gender people, through

          3  a constitutional amendment, and not only are the

          4  people putting forward this constitutional amendment

          5  trying to outlaw same gender marriages, they're

          6  trying to eliminate all same gender relationships

          7  and to eliminate the benefits which have gone to

          8  people as a result of, for instance, civil unions in

          9  Vermont, and domestic partner benefits across the

         10  nation. It's not just about marriage, what they're

         11  trying to take away; they're trying to get rid of

         12  any benefits which are conveyed to people who are in

         13  the same gender relationship. And it's a big

         14  movement and it's very dangerous. And I think

         15  because of that, now is the time for the Mayor to

         16  step up to the plate and defend civil rights, and

         17  defend benefits entitlements for same gender people,

         18  they're mostly people of his persuasion, that is

         19  Republican, that are putting this forward, and I

         20  think that as a leader of the greatest City, I think

         21  in the United States, as a leader he needs to step

         22  forward and say we're going to fight against that

         23  tide and we're going to provide benefits to as many

         24  people as we possibly can by whatever means this

         25  City has in its arsenal.
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          2                 So, I hope he's not going to be so

          3  stubborn about this. I think it's odd that his

          4  company, his former company, provides these benefits

          5  and yet he's so resistant here. And it's also

          6  critically important that he supports this

          7  legislation, not cause a fight over it, not say, you

          8  know, as Mayor and as, because he's a republican

          9  now, I'm going to oppose this, but he should be with

         10  us on this. And hopefully that will be a huge step

         11  towards helping us on the state level to do exactly

         12  the same thing. So, thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         14  Senator.

         15                 Diana.

         16                 MS. BODERO: Thank you very much for

         17  inviting me here to be able to speak on behalf of

         18  Charles King, Co-president of Housing Works.

         19                 Housing Works was founded in 1990 and

         20  exists today to address the crisis of homelessness

         21  and AIDS in New York City and around the nation.

         22                 We are the largest minority run AIDS

         23  social service organization in the nation.

         24                 We have carried out this mission

         25  since its founding by providing direct housing and
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          2  services to homeless and formerly homeless people

          3  living with AIDS and HIV in New York City.

          4                 Housing Works serves persons that are

          5  considered hard to serve by traditional service

          6  providers, including persons who are chemically

          7  dependent and/or mentally ill.

          8                 Housing Works accomplishes its

          9  purpose through advocacy that aggressively

         10  challenges perceptions about homeless people living

         11  with AIDS and HIV, both within their indigenous

         12  communities and in larger society.

         13                 We also facilitate access to other

         14  appropriate systems of care, and develop and sustain

         15  entrepreneurial enterprises that support Housing

         16  Works while providing employment opportunities for

         17  the people Housing Works serves.

         18                 Housing Works is a

         19  minority-controlled corporation committed to

         20  maintaining diversity of race, ethnicity, gender and

         21  sexual orientation among its Board of Directors,

         22  paid and volunteer staff and clientele.

         23                 Housing Works does not discriminate

         24  in the administration and delivery of client

         25  services or employment of staff of any kind on the
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          2  basis of race, color, religion, creed, gender, sex,

          3  sexual orientation, age, disability, physical

          4  ability, national origin, citizenship status,

          5  marital or relationship status, gender identity or

          6  expression or presumed modes of HIV transmission.

          7                 Housing Works strongly encourages

          8  application for employment by persons from

          9  population groups traditionally discriminated

         10  against, including women, persons of color, persons

         11  who are disabled, and persons with histories of

         12  chemical dependence.

         13                 Housing Works maintains an

         14  affirmative employment preference for persons who

         15  are homeless or formerly homeless and for

         16  self-identified persons with HIV.

         17                 In addition, we offer a full package

         18  of employee benefits, not only to our employees, but

         19  also to their families and domestic partners, as

         20  they define them.

         21                 Contrary to what is currently the

         22  point of view that often such benefits is

         23  detrimental to the bottom line, and it's not cost

         24  effective, Housing Works' experience is that this is

         25  simply not true.
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          2                 This year we switched from being a

          3  self-funded insurance entity to fully insured. We

          4  saved over a quarter of a million dollars by doing

          5  so. And over 50 percent of our employees have

          6  domestic partners. We never encountered one problem

          7  with the insurance carrier to provide such benefits

          8  to the domestic partners of our employees and

          9  families.

         10                 We follow our affirmative action

         11  policy, not because we are required to do so, but

         12  because it is simply the right thing to do.

         13                 The playing field is leveled by not

         14  passing over organizations that recognize domestic

         15  partnerships. This increases fairness overall, not

         16  just to the organization itself and its employees,

         17  but to its constituencies, as well.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         20                 MR. BENDER: The Assemblymember had

         21  wanted to be here today but unfortunately had to go

         22  to a meeting. I will present her testimony for her.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Will you state

         24  your name again? I'm sorry.

         25                 MR. BENDER: My name is Gregory
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          2  Bender.

          3                 I am pleased to present testimony in

          4  support of the Equal Benefits Bill. This important

          5  legislation will leverage New York City's purchasing

          6  power to make equal benefits available to more

          7  working families.

          8                 The contracting process is one place

          9  where New York City government can effect the

         10  benefits policies of non-government entities by

         11  ensuring that organizations and corporations with

         12  which we choose to contract, reflect the values and

         13  belief of tax-paying residents. New Yorkers value

         14  diversity and understand the importance of equal

         15  benefits for all families.

         16                 Still, our contracting process lies

         17  behind many City agencies, corporations and

         18  non-profit organizations by failing to recognize and

         19  provide such benefits for all families.

         20                 The Equal Benefits bill will help

         21  thousands of New York families by ensuring that the

         22  Corporations and agencies for whom they work will

         23  provide health insurance, life insurance,

         24  bereavement leave, retirement and other important

         25  benefits to all of their employees and their
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          2  families.

          3                 It is time for our City policies to

          4  reflect how families actually live. Similar

          5  legislation has been successfully implemented in San

          6  Francisco, Los Angeles, Minneapolis and Seattle and

          7  on a statewide basis, California.

          8                 In San Francisco, an estimated 51,000

          9  people have received health coverage as a result of

         10  Equal Benefits legislation.

         11                 Furthermore, more than 2,000 new

         12  employers have instituted domestic partnership

         13  benefits in order to be in compliance with this law.

         14                 The implementation of this

         15  legislation will also encourage gay and lesbian

         16  employees stay with organizations, decreasing hiring

         17  and training cost, and encouraging more diverse

         18  workplaces. By providing health insurances to the

         19  families and workers with domestic partners, we can

         20  decrease dependence upon Medicaid, public hospitals,

         21  and other government health care programs.

         22                 There is still much work to be done

         23  to guarantee equal rights for all New Yorkers.

         24                 Numerous important measures have not

         25  yet been made into law in the state, federal and
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          2  local levels, including legislation providing

          3  marriage equality.

          4                 The Equal Benefits bill will be

          5  another important step forward in this movement.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MS. STUART: Hi. I'm Cynthia Stuart.

          8  Again, I'm from Project Renewal.

          9                 Project Renewal is a social service

         10  agency that provides everything homeless New Yorkers

         11  need to move from the streets to health, homes and

         12  jobs. We've been around since 1967, and we currently

         13  work with some 13,000 homeless New Yorkers, offering

         14  outreach treatment, health care, help with getting

         15  and keeping a job and moving into quality affordable

         16  housing.

         17                 We have also been providing full

         18  benefits for domestic partners Project Renewal

         19  employees since 1995.

         20                 We extend these benefits because it's

         21  the right thing to do, and as it turns out, has cost

         22  us very little money.

         23                 Since Project Renewal's mission is to

         24  help our clients achieve their highest potential,

         25  and because we believe that everyone needs to be
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          2  treated fairly, naturally we wanted to extend this

          3  philosophy to the people who work for us.

          4                 We, therefore, began offering

          5  domestic partner benefits eight years ago.

          6                 The cost has been minimal, and the

          7  benefit significant. We currently employ about 500

          8  people, 35 percent of whom are formerly homeless

          9  clients.

         10                 Today only three of those people are

         11  utilizing our domestic partner benefits, and the

         12  additional monthly cost to our agency is around

         13  $500.

         14                 Further, when we contracted for

         15  health insurance, there was no additional cost for

         16  adding the domestic partner rider.

         17                 In terms of the extra paperwork that

         18  we have addressed, Project Renewal currently has

         19  over $17 million worth of contracts with various

         20  City agencies, including the Department of Homeless

         21  Services and the Department of Mental Health.

         22                 We have another $17 million loans

         23  with the Department of Housing, Preservation and

         24  Development. After years of completing contracts

         25  with these City agencies, we anticipate that the
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          2  passage of this legislation would add only a few

          3  extra minutes of additional paperwork to the

          4  process.

          5                 For all these reasons, we therefore

          6  wholeheartedly endorse the legislation before you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

          8  all of you for coming and giving testimony.

          9                 Let me acknowledge Dr. Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Senator, could you tell me if there

         13  is any comparative bill in the State? Because

         14  earlier we had the Administration here and they were

         15  in some way trying to tell us this is the wrong

         16  forum, it's the wrong place. They aren't totally

         17  against the bill, but they feel it's the wrong

         18  place. Do you have any take on that?

         19                 SENATOR DUANE: There is no state

         20  impediment. I either have already or am going to

         21  introduce similar legislation in the State Senate,

         22  and I don't think I'll have any trouble finding a

         23  companion in the Assembly to do it as well, but

         24  there is no impediment in the State Constitution or

         25  in State law. I am going to introduce a bill, but,
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          2  you know, it defies logic -- I mean, it would be

          3  great, believe me, if New York State would lead the

          4  way on progressive legislation, but it doesn't work

          5  that way. New York City is always ahead of the State

          6  on these issues, and though I wish that weren't the

          7  case, it's essential for the City to take this step

          8  in order for the State to do the same thing.

          9                 So, I hope that answers your

         10  question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, I tend

         12  to agree with you. I've seen quite a number of bills

         13  that start maybe in the form of a resolution or

         14  maybe a form of a bill that deals with New York City

         15  only first, and then it expands to the entire State.

         16  And I couldn't understand -- I feel there is not a

         17  real objection from the Speaker that we had, but

         18  they had to follow their mandates, or take orders

         19  from whoever saying listen we have to oppose this.

         20  Because from the questions that we asked, they could

         21  not even give us straightforward answers. I got the

         22  impression that they did not really agree with the

         23  Administration in their formal presentation that

         24  they did here today, and we should go ahead in what

         25  we're doing.
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          2                 SENATOR DUANE: Yes, I just want to,

          3  you know, after many, many years of psychotherapy,

          4  I've realized that I cannot, I do not know what's

          5  going on in other people's heads, but I do believe

          6  that your assumption is as good as what anybody else

          7  could come up with.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Cynthia, Project

          9  Renewal, you said you have approximately several

         10  contracts, $17 million of contracts, and you provide

         11  domestic partners benefits to all of your employees;

         12  is that correct?

         13                 MS. STUART: We do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think you said

         15  that you basically, or did I hear from Housing

         16  Works, you basically have the same type of

         17  legislation that San Francisco has?

         18                 MS. BODERO: We don't have

         19  legislation. We're hoping you pass this legislation

         20  for New York. But we're contractors, we're a social

         21  service agency, non-profit, that helps the homeless.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But I think San

         23  Francisco said you could name -- the law in San

         24  Francisco, you just have to communicate, name the

         25  other individual that you want covered for health
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          2  insurance; is that the way Housing Works has it

          3  also?

          4                 MS. BODERO: Yes, it is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That is. I

          6  thought I heard that.

          7                 MS. BODERO: Yes, it is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, if I was

          9  working for you, and I could name my brother, for

         10  example, if my brother lived with me, if that were

         11  the requirements I could name my brother; is that

         12  correct?

         13                 MS. BODERO: Yes, I think what you

         14  were probably referring to is my statement on, we

         15  provide benefits to our employees, their families

         16  and domestic partners as they define them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: As they define

         18  them.

         19                 MS. BODERO: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         21                 Chris, any questions?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just wanted

         23  to note for the record that Housing Works is also a

         24  contractor with the City, so it's important to know,

         25  and that Project Renewal in there, $17 million of
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          2  contracts, is actually one of the top 100

          3  contractors with the City of New York. So, we

          4  appreciate everyone's testimony, but I think it's

          5  particularly significant that it's one of the

          6  companies that has the top 100 dollar amount largest

          7  contracts with the City is supportive of this bill,

          8  and are going to anything but walk away from those

          9  contracts and the services. And Tom, it's lovely to

         10  see you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I know that we

         12  contract out $9 billion for construction, goods and

         13  services, and clearly that much money, I believe

         14  that there are thousands and thousands of

         15  contractors out there that want to do business with

         16  the City of New York that could clearly see that

         17  this is not going to be a problem, as far as once

         18  it's adopted into law.

         19                 So, I know that just based on the

         20  volume, the numbers that we're talking about, $9

         21  billion is a lot of money in contracts that we give

         22  out every single year.

         23                 Well, I want to thank all of you for

         24  coming in, and for giving testimony this afternoon.

         25  Thank you very much.
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          2                 The next panel is Connie Reese with

          3  Assemblymember Gottfried's Office; Reverend Dr. Earl

          4  Kooperkamp; Rabbi Peter Schaktman; and David Levo;

          5  and Daryl Ng. Are they here?

          6                 Okay, the Assemblymember Gottfried's

          7  Office person had to leave, but we do have their

          8  testimony as part of the record.

          9                 Good afternoon, and thank you for

         10  staying the course. We apologize for the late start.

         11  You know, we were trying to juggle between the big

         12  Chambers and we finally stayed here. So, I thank you

         13  for all staying the course, and I appreciate it very

         14  much. I know that many of you have not eaten lunch,

         15  and I know the feeling.

         16                 So, with that I'm going to ask each

         17  one of you to introduce yourselves, your name and

         18  affiliation for the record, and if you don't mind,

         19  we'll start over here.

         20                 MR. NG: Daryl Ng, Gay Men's Health

         21  Crisis.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         23                 MR. LEVO: I'm David Levo, and I'm

         24  representing myself.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 Rabbi, press the button.

          3                 RABBI SCHAKTMAN: Rabbi Peter

          4  Schaktman, with the Union for Reformed Judiaism, the

          5  Greater New York Council.

          6                 REVEREND KOOPERKAMP: Earl Kooperkamp,

          7  Pastor of St. Mary's Episcopal Church in West

          8  Harlem, representing the Episcopal Diocese of New

          9  York.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         11                 Would you all raise your right hand?

         12                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         13  information that you're going to provide is the

         14  truth concerning Intro. 271, the Equal Benefits

         15  Bill?

         16                 REVEREND KOOPERKAMP: Amen.

         17                 RABBI SCHAKTMAN: I do.

         18                 MR. LEVO: I do.

         19                 MR. NG: I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         21                 Why don't we start over here, if you

         22  don't mind.

         23                 MR. NG: Good afternoon. My name is

         24  Daryl Ng. I'm Director of Government Relations for

         25  Gay Men's Health Crisis, the nation's oldest and
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          2  most comprehensive voluntary agency, responding to

          3  the AIDS epidemic.

          4                 We service over 15,000 clients

          5  annually, and offer a wide range of services in the

          6  continuum of HIV care. Approximately two-thirds of

          7  our clients are from the GBLT community. Thank you

          8  for this opportunity to testify.

          9                 GMHC emphatically supports the Equal

         10  Benefits Bill. We believe that enhancement of this

         11  bill is needed for several reasons.

         12                 First, the bill sends a clear message

         13  that New York City respects a diverse workforce and

         14  does not tolerate discrimination. Equal work should

         15  translate to equal benefits.

         16                 Offering the same benefits to

         17  employees with domestic partners, as employees with

         18  spouse, ensures that workers receive equal pay for

         19  equal work. It's a matter of being fair to a group

         20  of New Yorkers that face discrimination, bias, and

         21  harassment, in many aspects of daily living.

         22  Employment benefits are vital and need to be

         23  distributed fairly.

         24                 The Equal Benefits bill makes

         25  business sense also, because it improves the work
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          2  environment.

          3                 GMHC is an organization of over 200

          4  staff positions has been offering domestic

          5  partnership benefits for years and we can testify

          6  through our own experience that the cost associated

          7  with extending the benefits are measurable, and

          8  definitely any costs that there are, are offset by

          9  the ability to attract and retain the most talented

         10  employees with a comprehensive benefit package.

         11                 In fact, when we added the domestic

         12  partnership rider to our health care insurance

         13  policy, there was no increase in cost.

         14                 Perhaps the most compelling reason

         15  for New York City to implement this bill is the fact

         16  that New York City is in a health care crisis, with

         17  one in four New Yorkers living without health

         18  insurance, this bill helps make health insurance

         19  available to those with no other resources.

         20                 In addition, for members of the HIV

         21  community, passage of the Equal Benefits bill would

         22  mean that domestic partners gain access not only to

         23  live-saving medical insurance, but also for family

         24  leave, visitations and bereavement benefits.

         25                 Giving the many hardships that people
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          2  with HIV must endure, fair treatment for domestic

          3  partners should not be one of them.

          4                 Everyone wins when companies treat

          5  employees fairly and without discrimination.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. LEVO: I would just like to start

          8  by thanking Councilwoman Quinn, in particular, for

          9  allowing me to be here today, and the Council in

         10  general.

         11                 As I sit before you, the value --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just state your

         13  name at the beginning.

         14                 MR. LEVO: Oh. I'm David Levo.

         15                 As I sit before you, the value and

         16  the just nature of the Equal Benefits bill is a

         17  non-issue with me. The very topic of extending

         18  domestic partnership benefits seems a relic of the

         19  nineties, an issue west belt cities are still

         20  dealing with in the west, not something that

         21  troubles our City.

         22                 I moved here in the fall of last

         23  year, pursing the creative, dynamic and liberal

         24  attitudes that make New York so famous, and

         25  ultimately found a job with my current employer
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          2  after three months of searching. It was my personal

          3  experience with a less than stellar economy.

          4                 While my current employer has many

          5  things going for it, it is less than ideal, and not

          6  my first choice.

          7                 Many days it seems like an office

          8  right out of Cincinnati, rather than Manhattan. To

          9  be fair, my firm does not actively discriminate

         10  against anyone, and I go to work every day feeling

         11  like a valued and productive member of my workplace.

         12                 Yet, my office, which has numerous

         13  contracts with City agencies, does not extend

         14  domestic partnership benefits to employees despite

         15  its own equal opportunity statement.

         16                 Repeated attempts to convince the

         17  firm's leadership otherwise on the basis of

         18  productivity, retention and ethics do not even gain

         19  attraction.

         20                 This refusal, however, is still a

         21  non-issue with me. I am young and not in a domestic

         22  partnership myself. Within a year, I will have most

         23  likely left my office, as I continually pursue

         24  better career opportunities and more dynamic

         25  workplace attitudes.
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          2                 Yet, I work in an office with over

          3  300 people in the City and over 500 people

          4  nationally. There are numerous co-workers, gay and

          5  otherwise, that cannot leave, such as I can. There

          6  should be 30 or so people in this seat instead of

          7  me. They are men and women, gay and straight, with

          8  children and mortgages, and everything that

          9  constitutes family life. Yet, for some reason, they

         10  cannot legally wed, or they cannot choose to.

         11                 For most of these people, their

         12  situation does not provide my brand of mobility or

         13  my brand of irreverence for them, leaving the

         14  company means throwing away years of work and

         15  professional relationships. Even working towards

         16  domestic partnership benefits internally means

         17  jeopardizing the very same things.

         18                 For them there is always an excuse, a

         19  meeting to schedule and never the time.

         20                 They've been living a lifetime

         21  institutionalizing a form of institutional

         22  discrimination. Ladies and gentlemen, I have not.

         23  And that's why I'm here today, and that's why I'm

         24  speaking for them and for my own future.

         25                 I would also like to add that, in

                                                            156

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  terms of the vendor issue, that my company, like I

          3  said, I believe it's a financial issue, and if they

          4  were pressed to not -- to choose extending, you know

          5  what I mean, by all means they would definitely

          6  their domestic -- yeah.

          7                 RABBI SCHAKTMAN: Council members,

          8  good afternoon. I'm Rabbi Peter Schaktman, and I

          9  serve as the Interim Director of the Union for

         10  Reformed Judaism, formerly known as the Union of

         11  American Hebrew Congregations, the Greater New York

         12  Council, which is comprised of over 90 reformed

         13  Jewish congregations throughout the Greater New York

         14  area, including some 30 synagogues in New York City,

         15  counting over 15,000 members.

         16                 I am very pleased to be able to come

         17  here today, representing both the lay and

         18  professional leadership of these synagogues, as well

         19  as positions taken by the national leadership of the

         20  reformed movement, the largest synagogue movement in

         21  North America, on the issues at hand. And speaking

         22  on their behalf, I urge you in the strongest terms,

         23  to pass the Equal Benefits bill.

         24                 As a religious community, we, the

         25  members of reformed synagogues are deeply committed
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          2  to the perpetuation of religious values in our civic

          3  life.

          4                 Those values begin with our most

          5  basic understanding of human beings as having been

          6  created, as the Torah teaches us, (In Jewish) the

          7  image of God. Our scriptures do not teach us that

          8  some are more deserving of dignity than others, or

          9  of justice, or of protection by society.

         10                 On the contrary, the tradition that I

         11  represent, teaches us that each life, each person,

         12  each man or woman who lives on earth embodies

         13  equally the image of the Divine.

         14                 We are therefore bound to practice

         15  actively what the traditional language of Judaism

         16  calls (in Jewish) that is righteousness, justice,

         17  fairness to all.

         18                 These values, these obligations,

         19  these manages are sacred to us and have sustained

         20  Jewish people for hundreds of years, and it is a

         21  secret challenge for religious leaders like me and

         22  my colleagues, and the lay people with whom we work,

         23  to continue to interpret these ideals for every new

         24  generation.

         25                 In this generation, and at this time,
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          2  we are witnessing a great transition in our view of

          3  family life in the religious sphere, the social

          4  sphere and the legal sphere. Our legislative bodies,

          5  along with our religious institutions, must serve as

          6  the source of and the model for our evolving civic

          7  values.

          8                 As our society seeks to respond to

          9  the evolution and our understanding of how people

         10  come together to form families, the private sector

         11  in particular will be looking for cues for our

         12  government bodies.

         13                 For too long, too many of our laws

         14  have not reflected the realities and the diversity

         15  of our community. By not responding to those

         16  realities, our legislators have failed to meet the

         17  actual needs of those on whose behalf they claim to

         18  legislate.

         19                 This cannot be allowed to continue,

         20  which is why for over 25 years the organizations and

         21  institutions that comprise the reform movement in

         22  Judaism have consistently supported equal protection

         23  for gays and lesbians in general and the extension

         24  of health care and other benefits to the domestic

         25  partners of gays and lesbians in particular.
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          2                 In 1977, for example, members of the

          3  Union of American Hebrew Congregation representing

          4  reforms used throughout North America, passed a

          5  resolution calling for such equal protection.

          6                 The Reform Movement's Central

          7  Conference of American Rabbis passed a similar

          8  resolution that same year.

          9                 In 1983, the North American

         10  Federation of Temple Youth, an organization

         11  comprised of over 8,000 reformed Jewish teenagers,

         12  also passed its own concurring resolution.

         13                 Four years later, the Women of

         14  Reformed Judaism, representing the synagogue women's

         15  groups across the country, assembled to call for

         16  full opportunities and civil protections to gays and

         17  lesbians, and in 1993, the UAHC, again issued a

         18  resolution that specifically called upon federal,

         19  state and local governments to adopt legislation

         20  that would afford partners in committed

         21  relationships, spousal benefits that include

         22  participation in health care plans and survivor

         23  benefits.

         24                 The Greater New York Council,

         25  representing the New York area, signed onto this
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          2  resolution enthusiastically.

          3                 We are, as I reminded you when I

          4  began, a religious community. As such, we strongly

          5  support and encourage formal recognized

          6  sanctification of committed relationships between

          7  two people. And we similarly support creating a

          8  context for those relationships in which they can

          9  flourish, and with fairness and equality are the

         10  values that guide public policy.

         11                 Our Rabbis of old taught, in the

         12  place where human dignity is not respected, strive

         13  to promote humanity.

         14                 To in any way collaborate with those

         15  who would deny domestic partners their due, would

         16  make this body complicit in perpetuating a grievous

         17  injustice.

         18                 For this reason, I again call upon

         19  the members of this Council to pass the Equal

         20  Protection Bill.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         23  Rabbi.

         24                 Dr. Kooperkamp.

         25                 REVEREND KOOPERKAMP: Good afternoon.
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          2  I'm Earl Kooperkamp, from St. Mary's Episcopal

          3  Church in West Harlem. A very wise episcopal priest

          4  who also was named Earl once said that "confessions,

          5  you should follow the rule of three Bs - Be brief,

          6  be blunt and be gone. Which I'll try to put in the

          7  practice here.

          8                 I want to thank you for this

          9  opportunity to appear before you today, and I'm

         10  speaking on behalf of the right Reverend Kathryn

         11  Roscoe and Bishop Sufergan of the Episcopal Diocese

         12  in New York, as an unforeseen conflict prevented her

         13  from being here today.

         14                 However, she wishes that this

         15  testimony be brought to your consideration and your

         16  attention.

         17                 The legislation before the City

         18  Council today represents a basic issue of justice

         19  that is of concern to all New Yorkers, and I'm very

         20  pleased to report to you that the 225th convention

         21  of the Episcopal Diocese of New York held on June

         22  2nd, 2001, this convention represents over 200

         23  episcopal congregations in New York City and the

         24  Upstate counties, the following resolution passed by

         25  a wide majority.
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          2                 Resolved: That the Convention of the

          3  Diocese of New York supports legislative action in

          4  the New York City Council to provide equal benefits

          5  protection for domestic partners employed by firms

          6  that do business with New York City; and

          7                 Be it further resolved: That the

          8  Diocese supports this plan to stand for decency and

          9  fairness for gay and lesbian New Yorkers, and

         10  pledges to work to make this legislation the

         11  standard of business for our City.

         12                 As religious leaders, we're called by

         13  God to promote and to preserve the welfare of our

         14  community, and since the days of the prophets, the

         15  call for justice in our social relations, has been

         16  central to our duty of following God.

         17                 As the Prophet Mike has spoke, what

         18  does the Lord require of you but to do justice, to

         19  love kindness and to walk humbly with your God.

         20                 The bill you consider today, my

         21  sisters and brothers, is about doing justice.

         22                 In the Episcopal Church, the

         23  foundation of our ministry both for clergy and lay

         24  members is our vow to respect the dignity of every

         25  human being. This legislation is a means for putting
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          2  this now into practice.

          3                 Let me be clear, this is not an issue

          4  of personal morality. It is much, much deeper than

          5  that. It's an issue of social justice. It calls us

          6  to use our treasure, our tax money, to promote

          7  fairness and equal standards among employees.

          8                 It is legislation that ends a subtle

          9  and insidious form of discrimination and therefore

         10  it is of the utmost importance.

         11                 To my mind, one of the greatest

         12  moments in the illustrious history of New York City

         13  is when your former colleague, the Reverend Wendell

         14  Foster of the Bronx, stood strongly firm on civil

         15  rights in the 1980s, when he cast the deciding vote

         16  on the Gay Rights bill.

         17                 You all now have the tremendous

         18  opportunity to build upon this legacy by passing the

         19  Equal Benefits bill. The demand of justice. The

         20  demand of justice for all requires no less.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I want to

         23  thank all of you for coming and giving testimony

         24  this afternoon.

         25                 Clearly, the record speaks for
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          2  itself, and especially those that are representing

          3  the groups and organizations and churches and

          4  religions that you represent, I thank you for coming

          5  in.

          6                 Council Member Quinn.

          7                 Council Member Stewart.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair. I just wish that we had the

         10  representatives of the religious institutions speak

         11  before, the folks from the Administration, to hear

         12  their views, because their concerns about religious

         13  institution is not founded here. And I want to thank

         14  you for your testimony. It makes it clearer for all

         15  of us to know that it's not just a gay and lesbian

         16  bill, it's a bill for justice, equal rights for all.

         17  And if we do not do the right thing, it means then

         18  we perpetuating the practice of discrimination and

         19  unfairness in the workplace. And I want to thank you

         20  for coming forth.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         23  Quinn.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         25  thank you all, and agree that we will obviously send
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          2  all the testimony on to the Administration, but we

          3  will put that of the religious leaders on the top of

          4  the pile when we send it.

          5                 Rabbi, I don't know if we have a copy

          6  of your testimony, but if you could get it to us at

          7  some point, it would be really helpful, and I think

          8  it is important that the Administration hear that it

          9  is actually wrong of them to cast all faith-based

         10  organizations in one way and make it sound that all

         11  religious people share a discriminatory view against

         12  some of the members of the population.

         13                 I want to thank the whole panel, and

         14  David, I want to thank you for coming forward and

         15  giving your personal account for somebody who works

         16  for a company that is a City contractor, and I think

         17  you're right, if they have the choice of having to

         18  change their insurance policy or lose millions and

         19  millions of dollars of work, they're a business,

         20  they're going to stick with the money, particularly

         21  when the insurance changes have been proven to cost

         22  nothing. And you're right, part of our job is to

         23  push issues, and it sounds like your company is a

         24  perfect example of some place that just needs a

         25  nudge and this bill could be just that. So, thank
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          2  you all very much for sharing so much time with us

          3  today. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Last but not

          5  least, the last panel. Jennifer Jackson from Safe

          6  Horizons, Jan Holland, and Charles Montalbano. Is he

          7  here?

          8                 Is there anyone else that wants to

          9  testify that has not testified? Is anyone else here?

         10                 Please come forward.

         11                 I've always, when I have attended

         12  Committee hearings, last but not least, the people

         13  that are last have the most to say, and I always try

         14  to stay as long as possible to hear the testimony of

         15  especially the last panel.

         16                 So, I thank you for being patient and

         17  staying the course with us this afternoon.

         18                 Would you please state your name and

         19  affiliation for the record? Jennifer, press the

         20  button there, please.

         21                 MS. JACKSON: My name is Jennifer

         22  Jackson. I'm Vice President of Human Resources at

         23  Safe Horizon.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         25                 MS. HOLLAND: I'm Jan Holland, I'm
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          2  here presenting personal testimony on behalf of some

          3  friends.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 Would you both raise your right hand.

          6                 Do you swear or affirm that the

          7  information and testimony that you're going to give

          8  this afternoon is the truth with reference to Intro.

          9  271, the Equal Benefits bill?

         10                 MS. JACKSON: I do.

         11                 MS. HOLLAND: I do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Please begin.

         13                 MS. JACKSON: Again, my name is

         14  Jennifer Jackson, Vice President of Human Resources

         15  at Safe Horizon. And it is a pleasure to be with you

         16  here today to provide a statement in support of the

         17  Equal Benefits Law. I want to thank Council Member

         18  Quinn and the leadership of this City Council for

         19  recognizing the importance of this issue.

         20                 Safe Horizon is the nation's leading

         21  crime victim assistance and advocacy organization.

         22  Our mission is to provide support, prevent violence

         23  and promote justice for victims of crime and abuse,

         24  their families and communities.

         25                 Safe Horizon assists over 350,000 New
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          2  Yorkers each year through more than 85,000 -- I'm

          3  sorry, excuse me -- through more than 85 programs

          4  located throughout New York City, and employs over

          5  900 staff.

          6                 Founded in 1978 as victim services,

          7  we give victims a stronger voice in the criminal and

          8  civil justice systems and assist in addressing their

          9  immediate needs.

         10                 Since 1994 Safe Horizon has offered

         11  health and dental insurance coverage to domestic

         12  partners of the same and opposite sex. For Safe

         13  Horizon, this was not a political decision, but

         14  rather one based on sound business sense and the

         15  policy has worked extremely well for our

         16  organization.

         17                 Like many organizations and companies

         18  within New York City, Safe Horizon attracts a highly

         19  diverse workforce that closely mirrors the

         20  population we serve.

         21                 We embrace this diversity, both

         22  through our client advocacy and internally.

         23                 As a non-profit social service

         24  organization, our salaries generally are not as high

         25  as those found in the corporate government sectors,
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          2  but increasingly we find ourselves competing with

          3  these sectors for candidates.

          4                 Among other non-profit social service

          5  organizations, this type of benefit is typically

          6  offered, and therefore, not to offer it would put us

          7  at a competitive disadvantage.

          8                 As competition for qualified staff

          9  has intensified in the social service sector, even

         10  in light of post 9/11 and this heightened economy,

         11  health insurance for recognized partners'

         12  independence is a benefit that our employees expect.

         13                 We cannot afford not to offer fair

         14  and equal benefits to different employee groups,

         15  especially since the City recognizes such

         16  partnerships.

         17                 Our health and dental insurance

         18  providers do not charge us any additional premium

         19  costs for domestic partner rider, so the only cost

         20  to the organization offering benefits to domestic

         21  partners is in the portion of the health and dental

         22  insurance at Safe Horizon normally contributes.

         23                 The actual number and dollar impact

         24  of affected staff is small, less than one percent of

         25  our total eligible employee population is enrolled

                                                            170

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  in domestic partner benefit and it is offered

          3  equally to all employees.

          4                 The annual cost, therefore, to the

          5  organization is similarly low, at less than two

          6  percent of our total employer paid premium costs.

          7                 All health and dental insurers we've

          8  worked with during this nine-year period have

          9  offered this extension to our benefits package, and

         10  it seems to be becoming a standard benefit. The

         11  return to us, in terms of employee morale and the

         12  positioning as an employer of choice are great and

         13  from a cost benefit standpoint we consider this to

         14  be a worthwhile investment.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 Jan.

         18                 MS. HOLLAND: I provided a written

         19  statement to you, but I'm going to also add a couple

         20  of comments just based on the testimony that I have

         21  heard today. And I also want to reiterate the point

         22  that was raised by Council Member Stewart, that this

         23  is a family issue, it's a workers right issue, and I

         24  believe that this case reiterates that.

         25                 My name is Jan Holland. I submit this
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          2  statement to you on behalf of my dear friends and

          3  neighbors Leslie Thrope, Dominique Ghossein and

          4  their five-year-old daughter Sadie.

          5                 Alan Capelle from the Empire State

          6  Pride Agenda mentioned this case to you earlier.

          7                 Although Leslie Thrope had planned to

          8  speak to you today, she is unable to be here because

          9  of the recent death of Dominique Ghossein. Her

         10  domestic partner --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Jan, take as

         12  much time as you need, okay? Don't rush.

         13                 MS. HOLLAND: Her domestic partner for

         14  more than ten years. The history of Dominique's last

         15  two years provides an unfortunate example of the

         16  need for this proposed Equal Benefits Law.

         17                 Dominique was diagnosed with cervical

         18  cancer in 1996, prior to the birth of their

         19  daughter. During the past four years that I have

         20  known the Thrope-Ghossein family, Dominique has

         21  fought far too many battles with this disease. She

         22  survived extraordinary challenges of various

         23  treatments, and many surgeries, including repeated

         24  operations to her lungs and brain. Even though it

         25  seemed tremendously difficult, Dominique returned to
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          2  work because it was the only way to retain her

          3  health insurance, without incurring the prohibitive

          4  cost of Cobra continuation coverage.

          5                 Because Dominique became increasingly

          6  ill and was unable to work during this time period,

          7  her family was forced to pay a Cobra benefits, a

          8  cost of almost $700 a month.

          9                 Dominique never had the opportunity

         10  to be covered under Leslie's health insurance

         11  because Leslie's employer, 32BJ Legal Fund, does not

         12  provide domestic partner benefits.

         13                 I point out here that Leslie had

         14  family coverage to cover her and her daughter, so to

         15  cover hear partner Dominique would have cost little,

         16  if anything.

         17                 Leslie poignantly explained that she

         18  has been required to pay out over $9,000 a year for

         19  additional health coverage because her employer does

         20  not offer the same health benefits to her as they do

         21  to other employees.

         22                 Leslie is one of several lawyers who

         23  provide valuable services to 32BJ union members. She

         24  has worked for the Legal Fund for almost nine years,

         25  although Leslie provides the same service as her
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          2  peers, she receives less compensation than her

          3  heterosexual married colleagues.

          4                 Ultimately this has been a burden on

          5  the entire Thrope-Ghossein family. They concurrently

          6  struggled with the routine expenses that every

          7  family has, as well as the many additional expenses

          8  related to living with this disease, and now their

          9  financial burdens of being a single parent

         10  household.

         11                 Over the course of the last few

         12  months, Dominique's prognosis declined rapidly. She

         13  often labored to breathe, was extremely weak and was

         14  unable to be left alone. It was evident and

         15  confirmed by medical reports that there was not much

         16  time and much care was needed.

         17                 She continued chemotherapy at home

         18  and often required the use of oxygen just to get

         19  through a short conversation.

         20                 Approximately one month prior to

         21  Dominique's death, Leslie and her family desperately

         22  needed and requested family leave, under the federal

         23  Family Medical Leave Act, FMLA. FMLA would have been

         24  granted to a married employee in the same situation.

         25  Her employer rejected her request and then suggested
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          2  that she take all of her vacation and sick leave. In

          3  response to much protest, some of that protest from

          4  Council members here, thank you, her employer

          5  provided her with a curiously manufactured type of

          6  leave, not FMLA, with absolutely no policy

          7  guidelines.

          8                 Leslie spent two of Dominique's last

          9  three weeks fighting with her employer about the

         10  lack of coverage. She was once again treated

         11  unfairly at the worst possible time. A most precious

         12  time that can never be replaced.

         13                 Leslie continues to be denied

         14  requested human resource services that would

         15  otherwise be granted if she were -- if it were not

         16  for her non-traditional family status.

         17                 Apparently, I want to add here

         18  apparently 32BJ is one of the big supporters of this

         19  bill and for good reason. I find it a little bit

         20  ironic, but in a way I understand because they are

         21  just like many organizations that need the impetus

         22  of this bill, the standards that will be created by

         23  this bill to make it happen for their staff.

         24                 This happened to a strong, informed

         25  and supported family. Dominique, like Leslie, was
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          2  also a lawyer dedicated to fighting for civil and

          3  human rights. They are both experts in navigating

          4  such issues, and their family has been surrounded by

          5  support.

          6                 The proposed Equal Benefits Law would

          7  protect many families like theirs, but most

          8  importantly will protect many families who are

          9  unable to fight as arduously as Leslie and her

         10  supporters did in the last few weeks.

         11                 This is especially critical for the

         12  many children in non-traditional families who may

         13  have a disabled or seriously ill care-giver or

         14  domestic partner in their household.

         15                 All families deserve the right to be

         16  together during such critical moments without fear

         17  of retribution or disparate treatment by their

         18  employer.

         19                 Like Leslie and Dominique, I'm a

         20  lesbian co-parent of a young child. My partner and I

         21  are very proud of our family. We are active in our

         22  Washington Heights community and in the gay and

         23  lesbian community. We are both employed by Columbia

         24  University, which has long provided the equal

         25  benefits that this bill proposes.
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          2                 And just to reiterate something that

          3  Ms. Goldstein said earlier about the benefits of the

          4  San Francisco law. Because of the benefits that I

          5  receive from my employer, I am motivated to do my

          6  job well and to stay in my job.

          7                 In New York City where there is a

          8  microcosm of diverse families, it should be assured

          9  that all are treated the same.

         10                 We should all have an expectation of

         11  equal benefits, especially those who significantly

         12  derive their benefits from New York City contracts

         13  or phones.

         14                 I hope that New York City continues

         15  to be in the forefront of providing equal benefits

         16  to each and every citizen.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         19  you, both, for coming in and giving testimony this

         20  afternoon. And Jan, let me ask you, the employer

         21  that you indicated in discussing your friend's case,

         22  Leslie was employed by 32BJ Legal Fund; is that what

         23  you said?

         24                 MS. HOLLAND: That's correct. She is a

         25  lawyer with 32BJ Legal Fund, and my understanding,
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          2  and their union representative is here who can, you

          3  probably know as well as I do, that she is

          4  considered the staff of the union and not the union

          5  member. But the lawyers there are in the process of

          6  unionizing, so there are certain benefits she and

          7  supporters believe she should have and they've been

          8  denied.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, I mean, my

         10  general understanding is 32BJ Legal Fund, if that is

         11  a legal entity in itself, or 32BJ, the larger, the

         12  union itself, could have, you know, said to her,

         13  yes, we're going to grant you leave to take care of

         14  your partner. I mean, that just could have been done

         15  by whoever is in charge by making a simple decision;

         16  am I wrong?

         17                 MS. HOLLAND: I don't think that you

         18  are wrong. What I believe, and this is from my

         19  perspective in conversations, and my understanding

         20  of what has gone on, is that they were blinded,

         21  because of the non-traditional family status, and

         22  because she asked for family medical leave, and

         23  because she does not fit into the box of the people

         24  who are covered under the federal act, which they

         25  denied her request for leave.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It seems a

          3  little ironic to me, and I don't know whether or not

          4  the 32BJ Legal Fund is a separate entity all

          5  together or 32BJ who we have been involved with, as

          6  far as advocating for protection of its employees

          7  with the displaced workers bill and the living wage

          8  bill and other things like that, that they would not

          9  afford someone whose partner is dying an opportunity

         10  to go and take care of her partner. Even though I

         11  guess they found a way to grant her some leave, I

         12  think two weeks before, but considering that they

         13  have asked us to go outside of the box and be

         14  progressive as far as legislation, I just question

         15  that, and maybe I'll talk to them about that. And

         16  while you were giving your testimony about your

         17  friend, I said to myself, maybe we should name the

         18  law after her. I just throw that out for food for

         19  thought, Chris. Because the Equal Benefits law, you

         20  know, it tells you what it is, but clearly the story

         21  that you've described of your friend, is something

         22  that I'm sure that we don't want anyone to go

         23  through, and sometimes in naming a law after someone

         24  which is symbolic of the type of struggles that

         25  individuals had to go through, it's important in the
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          2  process.

          3                 So, I thank you both for coming in

          4  and giving testimony.

          5                 I want to ask you, Ms. Jackson, as

          6  far as Safe Horizons, do you have contracts with the

          7  City of New York, and will you be, even though you

          8  already provide the benefits, do you have contracts

          9  with the City of New York? And if so, what's the

         10  value of your contracts with the City of New York?

         11                 MS. JACKSON: We do have contracts

         12  with the City of New York. I know they represent at

         13  least 8 million, and I suspect more of our overall

         14  budget. They are our largest single funder. The City

         15  is our largest single funder.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Quinn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I want to thank

         19  you both for your testimony. I want to thank Jan for

         20  her testimony. I knew what was involved with the

         21  family struggles at the end, I didn't know we were

         22  going to hear about their struggles on the record

         23  today, and I think it is a tragically poignant

         24  example of why this and other legislation is needed,

         25  and I think the idea of naming the bill and the law
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          2  after this family, if that's something they would

          3  want, is a very, very fitting and appropriate idea.

          4  And I would ask, Jan, if you and others could convey

          5  at the appropriate time that idea to them, and let

          6  us know what they think.

          7                 This case, which I think is a really

          8  clear and important example of why legislation is

          9  needed. You know, the federal Family Medical Leave

         10  Act does not specifically mention non-traditional

         11  families and domestic partners, though in no way

         12  does it prohibit companies from extending those

         13  benefits to their employees who are in domestic

         14  partnerships and non-traditional families.

         15                 So, I don't believe 32BJ in this case

         16  was prohibited from offering that to this family,

         17  thought the bill does not proactively say it. And

         18  sometimes even progressive employers, even unions

         19  who are employers, get for a whole host of reasons,

         20  some understandable and some not, tripped up by what

         21  is in a law and what is not in a law and what is in

         22  an ordinance and what isn't in an ordinance. So,

         23  this is another example of how important it is for

         24  the law to be clear and inclusive, and our bill will

         25  be a further clarification and affirmation of what

                                                            181

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  we believe as a City government families are, and

          3  hopefully it would create a situation where that

          4  type of confusion would never happen again, because

          5  what happens is, you know, let's say it was not

          6  ill-meant confusion, just for argument's sake, what

          7  happens is it causes a vast amount of pain and

          8  hardship, and as Jan said, time lost that can never

          9  be brought back.

         10                 You know, on the benefits part of it,

         11  I've been told, and we need to have more discussion

         12  with 32BJ about this, that they say that they are

         13  constrained in the insurance they can offer their

         14  employees because it comes out of the same benefit

         15  fund as the companies they contract -- the companies

         16  who their members are working for, and that they

         17  have not been able to win domestic partnership yet

         18  in any of those contracts. But what our bill will

         19  do, for those workers who work for cleaning or

         20  maintenance companies who have contracts in City

         21  buildings, those contracts will now have to have

         22  this benefit, and I believe that could create very

         23  likely a domino effect within that benefit fund that

         24  would have helped this family, would help other

         25  people hopefully create a similar domino effect and
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          2  other benefit funds, and I hope 32BJ participation

          3  today, and the education process that this tragedy,

          4  I hope was for them, will create a situation where

          5  it shouldn't have happened at all, but no other

          6  families have to go through this at 32BJ. And I just

          7  want to say this family and their friends were the

          8  most courageous, the most dignified, and the most,

          9  just courageous and dignified in this process as it

         10  moves forward, and nothing could be more fitting to

         11  them, I think you're right, Council member, than to

         12  have this bill be in their memory.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         14  Stewart.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 We have heard from elected officials,

         18  we have heard of community-based organizations,

         19  private entities, even religious groups, but I

         20  haven't heard any of the groups that is against

         21  this, no community-based organization, no union, no

         22  entity at all, except for the Administration, and I

         23  was wondering why -- did we deliberately select

         24  people in favor? I would like to know, because this

         25  is like a no-brainer for us to support the bill like
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          2  this, and if everyone is agreeing and understands it

          3  and seeing it as something that we should have been

          4  doing, should have done already, you know, I am at a

          5  loss why the Administration is really against it

          6  without giving us clear-cut reasons why they are

          7  against it.

          8                 Nevertheless, on the point of naming

          9  this bill after someone. I think it's a fitting idea

         10  for us to do that. Because this is something that

         11  will be in the memory of the experience, and it will

         12  show that no longer would we allow discrimination

         13  and unfairness to go around with the City of New

         14  York, especially when we are in a position to make

         15  and set the example and put things straight. We

         16  should no longer let this happen. We should pass

         17  this bill.

         18                 Thank you for your testimony. And

         19  thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         21  both of you for coming in.

         22                 Hearing no other witnesses, this

         23  hearing is adjourned.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 5:00 p.m.)
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